


Dear Shareholder

very uncharacteristic year in the

semiconductor industrya strong first half

and second half best described as downturn

ATMI did
very

well both financially and strategically

in 2011 its 25th
anniversary year

Our ongoing investments in High Productivity

Development HPD capabilities are yielding

eturns accounting for 4% of 2011 revenues

signed our first fee-based collaborative

lopment agreement with major IC

ucer focusing on microelectronics

Is and process insight

several of our innovative single use

to multiple companies in the life

vation was recognized by

Iministration which

to its Small

ill of Fame

leveloping

with the means to achieve safe cost-efficient

production of critical biopharmaceuticals using

single-use technologies for vaccine and drug

discovery
and manufacture

While we have reached 25 years the
spirit

of

continuous innovation and desire to find new

ways to serve customers and grow remains

strong Today our employees are working with

multiple collaboration partners on developing new

applications that apply our core competencies in

carbon engineering chemistry formulation and

critical
liquids packaging and

delivery to markets

with an ever-increasing focus on resource efficiency

As we move closer toward commercialization

well have lot to tell you about the sizeable

opportunities these applications represent

There are some important details to share with

you so let me do that

Microelectronics201

Microelectronics applications make up the

majority
of ATMIs revenue with primary focus

on developing and supplying advanced materials

to the worlds leading chipmakers Our goal is

straightforward through the global investments

weve made in technology development technical

and application support and manufacturing we

want to be the best materials problem-solving

partner that those leading chipmakers have ever

worked with

It all begins
with development capability

There

are three success metrics that we feel are vital First

do we have the critical research and development

engagements for the processes we are focused on

Flowing directly
from the engagements is our second

metric process of record
designation

from the

engagement When the process is released into High

Volume Manufacturing we generate high margin new

product revenue our third measure

of our HPD platform we re working together to

shrink the time needed to solve critical material and

process challenges deploying tools and people in

technology-transparent environment Should we

be successful the customer will bring advanced

technology to the market sooner and ATMI willin

addition to having research and development costs

reimbursed todaybe the exclusive
supplier

for the

materials under terms that
recognize

the
significant

benefit that our customer receives when bringing

new technologies to market earlier This first-of-

its-kind program is possible largely because of the

speed advantage we bring to this customer and is

the type of agreement we are working toward with

other leading customers

These development activities help define the

future for our materials business Our established

products are vitally important and
give us the

opportunity to look to the future The most critical

of these products is SDS considered the
safety and

productivity
standard for implant gas delivery in

semiconductor manufacturing

In October in transaction we call SOS Direct

we terminated our global distribution agreement

with Matheson paying $95 million in cash with

additional expense for inventory We recognized an

$85 million charge for terminating the agreement

and we are spending incremental amounts to
bring

customer and supply chain operations around the

world under ATMI management Subsequent to

the transaction we are working more closely with

customers to further advance the technology

better manage the distribution channel and increase

overall responsiveness and flexibility You will find

more details about this important transaction

beneath this fold-out

In our critical liquids packaging business we

recently introduced new technologies that we

believe will redefine the application yet again

Our newest innovation is designed to address one

of the most
pressing yield

issues in lithography

todaypreventing the incorporation of micro-

bubbles which behave like
particle defectin

critical fluids like photoresists used on the most

advanced devices

Our
progress

with Microelectronics customers in

2011 is proof that our goal of being the best partner

our customers have ever worked with and making

the investments to do it is entirely consistent with

delivering excellent financial results

LifeSciences201

To be sure the turmoil was related to global

economic uncertainties that left our customers

customers tentative in all but few
bright spots

such as smartphones and tablet devices At the

same time the gulf widened between those device

makers working on the worlds most sophisticated

and complex designs and those who lack the scale

or resources to continue to invest in leading-

edge device and process technology Working

with the leading innovators presents ATMIs

greatest opportunities

In 2011 ATMI generated strong growth

and posted significant achievements

Against backdrop of 2% wafer start growth

revenues grew 6% to $390 million and excluding the

effect of the SOS Direct transaction we delivered

strong growth in
operating

income

We terminated our SDS manufacturing and

distribution agreement with Matheson Tn-Gas

Inc and established global control of the SOS

product line allowing us to interact
directly

with our semiconductor-producing customers

as they work to integrate ever more challenging

processes and new materials

sci

Our

the

made ATMI

Business Inno

Founded in1986we ha

advanced materials and
high

integrity
materials packaging ari_

which the worlds
leading

devim

today on their most challenging pro

Over the past few years we

expanded our packaging technc

toward the life sciences markets

We provide certain segments

of the drug industry integrated

In 2011 new product revenues generated from

our investments over the last several years were

more than 4% of ATMIs total revenues Our major

focus is on deposition processes be they chemical

vapor atomic layer or other approaches surface

preparation including post-etch photoresist removal

and post-copper chemical-mechanical planarization

cleaning and other highly specialized applications

have spent several years mastering our

torial science-based HPD capability
While

do research and development

in 2011 we took major

red into structured In previous letters Ive shared with you how we

leading
have been working to deploy our technologies

bilities into new markets We are furthest along in the life
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2012 Vectors of growth

With the investments made over the last few

yearsthe effects of which really started to

become visible in 2011shareholders should see

continued progress in 2012 coming from three

primary growth vectors

The SDS Direct transaction

The
trajectory

of LifeSciences

Our capability to work with chipmakers to

solve the
increasing complexities of new material

introductions and
integration

and the ramping of

technology nodes that use the products resulting

from those collaborations

SDS2012

Controlling
all

aspects
of the SDS product line will

make
significant

difference for ATM In addition to

the customer interaction benefits mentioned earlier

the financial effect is substantial After the transition

phase is completed and we are controlling the

customer interface we expect the transaction to

add between $7-$8 million of revenue and $0.08

$0.09 of earnings per diluted share each quarter We

are working diligently to complete the transition as

early in 2012 as is possible

LifeSciences201

Over the last few years weve grown this business

to the $40 million revenue per year level We are

enthusiastic about the
progress we have made but

are well positioned and playing an important part

in helping our customers address the challenges of

the future We continued to expand our presence in

Taiwan with the establishment of manufacturing

partnership to complement our HPD capability in

the Hsin Chu Science Park area

In 2012 well be
investing

more in South Korea

establishing development applications and

expanded manufacturing and support capabilities to

ensure we can serve the important Korean market at

the highest level

We have balanced growthfrom established

products and from emerging products that are

now ramping In addition to wafer start growth in

our existing businesses and the incremental growth

in revenue and profits coming from the SDS Direct

transaction the new product revenue ramp that

began in 2011 is
accelerating

We intend to do much

better than what the market offers us

Yet none of this is ever possible
without the

commitment that comes from our employees

Having growth orientation puts lot of
pressure

on employees in every type of job We consistently

invest in the development of employees and give

them many opportunities to apply what they learn

am proud to
say

that ATMI employees rise to the

occasion and then some With their efforts and the

support of our customers 2012 should be
year

of

great
returns

As always want to thank you for your continued

support of and belief in ATMI

Global Footprint

Semiconductors are technology-driven industry

The
leading edge is where the opportunities are

and where the real growth originates

Rapidly applying research and development to

create the latest chip innovations is crucial in an

industry where time-to-market is key component

of long-term success The continuous need

dynamic consumer demand for new and improved

electronic devices and applications specialized

products in smaller quantities and all at lower prices

requires new
process technology solutions Next-

generation chips are higher performing and more

complexwhich in many cases require new materials

additional process steps and novel
integration

challengesall
of which can lead to higher cost

This has been going on for years and the
pressure

continues to intensify Consolidation of the chipmakers

continues arid the list of
corripanies

that can support

the
necessary development costs and

generate
the cash

required to build the factories of the future continues

to be refined We have made investments to support the

customers who we believe are at the front of the pack

in this race

The
challenges they have are increasing dramatically

The investments weve made in human and technology

capabilities
allowed us to become more of

partner to

our customers intimately aligned with their key value

drivers with deeper insight and more comprehensive

view of their plans requirements and goals ATMI has

focused for
years on the critical areas that make the

greatest
difference to these

leading chipmakers When

we collaborate closely we can help solve problems more

quicklyin the best case helping them get to market

more quickly with improved financial results for both

of us

Over the last few years weve accelerated our

investments in the areas of critical technology

development manufacturing logistics
and

applications

support We have extensive development capabilities in

close proximity to the rapidly developing Albany Nano

region
and Silicon Valley allowing usto work closely with

the critical North American customers

Our development capabilities
in Taiwan and Japan

support foundry and memory customers throughoutthe

vital Asian market In 2012 we will be
adding capabilities

in South Korea

In the end our best product is our quarter century

of broad-based
experience

and know how which is

delivered through people their capabilities and the

resources they deploy Through the global investments

weve made in technology development global support

applications and manufacturing we believe we are

better
positioned

than anyone to work
closely

with

customers to solve 28-nanometer
generation

and below

materials and materials
integration problems

We want to be the best materials problem-solving

partner our customers have ever worked with The

progress we made in 2011 demonstrates success gives
us

confidence and points to
promising

future

SDS Direct

ATMI is working to be the best
supplier our customers

have ever had which means we need to be the best in

all functions While
striving

for this our immediate focus

is innovation in materials process solutions and supply

chain capabilities

In October 2011 ATMI completed our SDS Direct

transaction terminating
the license manufacturing and

global distribution agreements we had with Matheson

Tn Gas Inc for our SOS product line for $95 million in

cash We believe this was very good use of cash

ATMI and Matheson began working together in

1996 when ATMI was much smaller company With

Mathesons
operations capability and ATMIs technical

expertise we collaborated to establish SDS as the

industry standard for safe
gas delivery to implant tools

with many billions of implants completed SDS has

remarkable
safety and productivity record one which

has resulted in ATMI and the individual scientists behind

its development receiving numerous industry
awards

The SDS Direct transaction was response to market

demands notably the technological complexity of

leading-edge devices and the need to intensify our

interactions with our customers to solve their current

and future problems as quickly
and

efficiently as possible

Collaborative
relationships are the key to solving these

problems ATMI has established these collaborations in

other
process areas and this transaction extends that

experience
and

capability to the vital implant process

We have vast knowledge of molecule
generation

and

delivery for implant to put to work for our customers

From accounting and financial perspectives the

transaction and related transition costs make the fourth

quarter and
year

of 2011 results less straightforward

In addition to the contract termination charge we

reversed some prior SOS revenues and ran down

product inventory Residual
integration

and transition

costs should cease in the second
quarter

of 2012 For the

most
part we are using existing supply chain capabilities

but we will be making some targeted capacity additions

to support the SDS products high volumes as well

as
ensuring

redundant manufacturing capability

customer requirement in this market We are expanding

our direct marketing and sales infrastructure which

will add $2 $3 million of
quarterly costs While some of

the transition costs will affect the first quarter of 2012

beginning in the second quarter we should be
operating

on normal run rate basis with an incremental $7 $8

million of revenue and $0.08-$0.09 of incremental

earnings per
diluted share each

quarter

With our SDS Direct model we will work side-by

side with customers supporting current
processes

and developing next-generation
solutions One

very

significant step on our journey to being
the best

partner

our customers have ever worked with

Tech no logys Leading Edge is Where Prosperity
and Growth Come Fromxt
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ramping in 2011 their mixing and bioreactor use is

still low Market studies indicate that adoption and

isumption will begin to accelerate starting now

our strong technology and market positions

investments we are making in
applications

expect to see this business grow on

25% per year for several years with

progressing toward higher margin

me

s201
tnds of the last few

and consolidating

triod of time

resources

I/
Doug Neugold

in Chief Executive Officer and President



SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

in thousands except per
share data

Fiscal Year Ended December 31

Consolidated Statements of Operations

Revenues

Cost of revenues

Gross profit

Operating expenses

Research and development

Selling general and administrative

Contract termination

Total

Operating income loss

Interest income

Other income expense net

Income loss before income taxes 39134 50627 3656 40146 59403

Provision benefit for income taxes 191 156 111218 6996 681 919 18864

Net income loss 20019 39506 6660 33327 40539

Earnings loss per
sharediluted $0.63 $1.24 50.21 Si .04 $1.16

Weighted-average shares outstandingdiluted 31703 31895 31398 32078 35093

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data

Cash cash equivalents and marketable securities 22 $113484 $152572 $107978 $96020 $193697

Working capital 226232 236263 20376013 190095 280221

Total assets 513686 533589 4589631 45244923 49207623

Long-term obligations 18399 28427 1779015 1568823 10491 23

Total stockholders equity 450331 458425 411490 408897 434383

The Company has never declared any cash dividends

Revenues were negatively impacted by S6.9 million doe to the effects of the SDS Direct transaction which included $5.1 million of revenue reversal for inventory repurchases and an estimated $1.8 million net impact doe

to excess inventory in the SDS channel which was partially
offset

by
incremental revenues realized as result of the transaction Includes S2.4 million from IP settlements

which
represent payments

received related to

periods prior
to 2011

The cost of revenues were favorably impacted by $1.5 million due to the effects of the SOS Direct transaction representing $1.1 million of cost reversals for inventory repurchased and $0.4 million estimated net effect due

to excess inventory
in the SOS channel partially offset by transition service costs and incremental costs on revenues realized following

the transaction

Includes $1.7 million gain on remeasarement of contingent consideration $2.4 million benefit related to state tax credits and distribution expenses
of $1.3 million related to the SOS Direct transaction

$84.6 million contract termination charge related to the SDS Direct transaction

Includes $1.3 million foreign exchange loss on Euro
exposures

$0.7 million of accretion related to the Artelis contingent consideration liability partially
offset

by $0.9 million investment gain

Includes $31.0 million tax benefit associated with the $84.6 million pretax contract termination charge

Includes $0.5 million gain
from the sale of marketable security $2.5 million gain on sale of shares of one of our equity-method investees

and $5.9 million fair value remeasurement gain on our minority
interest

from our acquisition of Artelis

Includes $1.8 million of tax benefits including interest recognized tu reverse previously established reserves for uncertain tax positions doe to expiration
of statutes of limitation and settlements $2.1 million tax benefit

related to European dividend and $1.9 million charge related to changes in valuation allowances

Includes $1.1 million charge far incremental excess and obsolete inventory related to product
discontinoances end reserve to cover expected product

shelf-life issues and $3.1 million impairment charge
fur

long-lived

assets written down to their estimated fair values primarily related to the planned idling
of manufacturing capacity of nor

gas products

10 Includes $1.6 million impairment charge for long-lived assets written down to their estimated fair values related primarily to idled equipment

11 Includes $1.4 million charge to increase our reserves for bad debt to cover exposures
related to customer bankruptcy filings and uncertainties of collections $2.6 million impairment charge for long-lived assets written

down to their estimated fair values primarily related to redundant enterprise management software and $0.6 million charge for SGA severance costs

12 Includes S2.5 million impairment charge primarily
related to write-down associated with an auction-rate security

13 Balance has been reduced by $0.1 million related to reclassification of unrecognized tax benefits and valuation allowances

14 Balance has been reduced by $0.6 million
related to reclassification of unrecognized tax benefits and valuation allnwances

15 Balance has been reduced by $0.6 million related to reclassification of unrecognized tax benefits and valuation allowances

16 Includes $2.4 million business interruption claim recovery
related to fire at contract manufacturer in Taiwan

17 Includes S3.1 million benefit associated with the settlement of dispute with distributor $3.7 million recognized in revenues
with $0.6 million of associated costs recognized in cost of revenues

18 Includes $2.0 million gain from the sale of marketable security $1.6 million of impairment charges related to our strategic
investment portfolio and $1.8 million reserve on convertible note and $1.1 million

representing our proportionate
share of gains on sales of assets by one of our equity-method investees

19 Includes $3.7 milliun tax benefit including interest recognized to reverse previously established reserves for uncertain tax positions usa resolt of the expiration of the applicable statute of limitations

20 Includes $1.1 million of increased customs expense on imported goods from the United States to an overseas affiliate

21 Includes $1.1 million associated with contingent legal fee arrangement

22 Includes non-current marketable securities of $3.3 million $25.4 million $10.6 million $3.7 million and SO million at December 31 2011201020092008 and 2007 respectively which includes $22.1 million

reclassification of our Intermolecular investment from Other non-current assets to Marketable securities current portion

23 Balances have been reduced by $0.6 million and $0.2 million fur
years

ended December 31 2008 and December 31 2007 respectively related to reclassification of unrecognized tao benefits from deferred tax liabilities

37714 41938 39922 52502

1205 949 1196 3126 7689

26255 77407 351 512 290218 788
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MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF

FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Company Overview

We believe we are among the leading suppliers of high performance materials ma

terials packaging and materials
delivery systems

used worldwide in the manufacture of

microelectronics devices Our products consist of front-end semiconductor performance

materials sub-atmospheric-pressure gas delivery systems
for safe

handling
and

delivery

of toxic and hazardous
gases

to semiconductor
process equipment and high-purily ma

terials packaging and dispensing systems that allow for the reliable introduction of low

volatilily liquids
and solids to microelectronics and biopharmaceutical processes

ATMI

targets
both semiconductor and flat-panel display manufacturers whose products form

the foundation of microelectronics technology rapidly proliferating through
the consumer

products
information

technology automotive and communications industries The market

for microelectronics devices is continually changing which drives demand for new products

and
technologies at lower cost ATMIs customers include many of the

leading
semicon

ductor and flat-panel display manufacturers in the world who target leading-edge tech

nologies
ATMI also addresses an increasing

number of critical materials
handling

needs

for the life sciences markets Our proprietary containment mixing and bioreactor tech

nologies are sold to the biotechnology laboratory and cell therapy markets which we

believe offer significant growth potential ATMIs objective is to meet the demands of our

microelectronics and life sciences customers with solutions that maximize the efficiency

of their manufacturing processes
reduce capital or operating costs and minimize the

time to develop new products
and

integrate
them into their

processes

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Use of Estimates

Preparation of our financial statements requires management to make estimates and

assumptions
that affect the

reported amounts of
assets liabilities revenues and expenses

Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements describes the significant accounting

policies used in preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements Management be

lieves the most complex and sensitive judgments because of their significance to the

Consolidated Financial Statements result primarily from the need to make estimates

about the effects of matters that are inherently uncertain The most significant areas in

volving management judgments and estimates are described below Actual results in

these areas could differ from managements estimates These
policies are determined by

management and have been reviewed by ATMIs Audit Committee

Revenue Recognition

We
recognize revenue when the

following
four criteria are met persuasive

evidence

of an arrangement exists delivery has occurred or services have been rendered

the fee is fixed or determinable and
collectability is reasonably

assured Revenues

from product sales are generally recognized upon delivery to common carrier when

terms are equivalent to free-on-board FOB origin
and

upon receipt by customer

when terms are equivalent to FOB destination In instances where final
acceptance

of

equipment is specified by the purchase agreement revenue is deferred until all
acceptance

criteria have been satisfied except when reasonable reserves for returns can be effectively

established due to substantial successful installation
history

for homogeneous transactions

Should changes in conditions cause management to determine these criteria are not met

for certain future
transactions revenue recognized

for any reporting period could bead

versely
affected We accrue for sales returns warranty costs and other allowances based

on current evaluation of our experience based on stated terms of the transactions

Should actual
product

failure rates or customer retufn experience
differ from our estimates

revisions to the estimated accruals would be required

Prior to October 31 201 we used Matheson as our exclusive contract manufacturer

and distribution partner 1or the manufacture and distribution of our SDS products the

Licensed Products Under the terms of the
original manufacturing agreement ATMI

retained the
right

to manufacture 25
percent

of all Licensed Products while Matheson

had the right to manufacture 75 percent of all Licensed Products Upon completion
of

manufacture ATMI
purchased

all licensed Products
produced by Matheson Under the

terms of the distribution agreement we received payment from Matheson based
upon

formula which was dependent on the sale
price

obtained
by

Matheson from its customers

ATMI recognized revenue from the sale of licensed Products to Matheson when Matheson

sold the Licensed Products to its customers because that is when the sales
price

became

fixed and determinable On October 312011 we terminated the agreements with Math

eson for manufacturing marketing selling
and distributing our SDS products Matheson

will provide ongoing support
services to ATMI during brief transition period and will

continue to manufacture
portion

of the SDS
products

for up to two years for which it

will be
paid

additional fees by ATMI Subject to such
continuing services ATMI assumed

control of all manufacturing distribution logistics
and soles

services
which Matheson

had
provided globally prior to execution of the Termination Agreement other than the

distribution of the SDS and VAC product lines in Japan which services will continue to

be provided by Mathesons parent company Taiyo Nippon Sanso Corporation
In those

regions
where Matheson is involved in

distributing products during
the transition period

revenues will be recognized only after sale of the Licensed Products to the end users

Accounts Receivable Allowances

The allowance for doubtful accounts is established to
represent our best estimate of

the net realizable value of the outstanding accounts receivable balances We estimate

our allowance for doubtful accounts based on past
due amounts and historical write-off

experience as well as trends and factors surrounding the credit risk of the markets we

operate in and the financial
viability

of
specific customers In an effort to identify

adverse

trends we assess the financial health of the markets we operate
in and perform periodic

credit evaluations of our customers and ongoing reviews of account balances and
aging

of receivables Amounts are considered
past

due when payment has not been received

within the time flame of the credit terms extended Write-offs are charged directly against

the allowance for doubtful accounts and occur only after all collection efforts have been

exhausted Actual write-offs and adjustments could differ from the allowance estimates

because of
unanticipated changes in the business environment as well as factors and

risks
surrounding specific customers

As of December 31 2011 and 2010 we had S0.8 million of accounts receivable al

lowances recorded
Although management believes these reserves are adequate any

adverse changes in market conditions may require us to record additional reserves

ATMI Inc



Inventory
Valuation Reserves

Inventory valuation reserves are established in order to report inventories at the lower

of cost or market value on our Consolidated Balance Sheets The determination of inventory

valuation reserves requires management to make estimates and judgments on the future

salability
of inventories Valuation reserves for

excess obsolete and slow-moving inventory

are estimated by comparing the inventory
levels of individual

parts to both future sales

forecasts or production requirements
and historical

usage rates in order to identify inventory

where the resale value or replacement
value is less than

inventory cost Other factors that

management
considers in

determining
these reserves include whether individual inventory

parts or chemicals meet current specifications and cannot be substituted for or reworked

into part currently being sold or used as service part
overall market conditions and

other
inventory management initiatives

As of December 31 2011 and 2010 we had $2.6 million and $2.4 million respec

tively
of

inventory
valuation reserves recorded Although management believes these

reserves are adequate any adverse changes in market conditions may require us to record

additional
inventory

valuation reserves

Non-Marketable
Equity

Securities

We selectively invest in non-marketable
equity securities of

private companies which

range
from early-stage companies that are often still defining their

strategic direction to

more mature companies whose products or technologies may directly support an ATMI

product or initiative Our non-marketable
equity

investments are recorded
using

cost

basis or the equity-method of accounting depending on the facts and circumstances of

each investment At December 31 2011 the
carrying

value of our portfolio
of

strategic

investments in non-marketable
equity

securities totaled $8.0 million $22.3 million at

December 31 2010 The main driver of the reduction from December 31 2010 was

the initial
public offering

of Intermolecular which caused us to reclassify our investment

from Other non-current assets to Marketable securities because the securities became

publicly
traded In certain instances we loan funds to early-stage investees at market

interest rates to enable them to focus on product and technology development Non-

marketable
equity

and debt securities are included in the Consolidated Balance Sheets

under the
caption

Other non-current assets We receive regular
financial information

from our investees typically on one-month lag

Investments in non-marketable
equity

securities are inherently risky and some of

these companies are likely to fail Their success or lack
thereof is dependent on product

development market acceptance operational efficiency attracting and retaining talented

professionals and other key business success factors In addition depending on their fu

ture prospects they may not be able to raise additional funds when needed or they may

receive lower valuations with less favorable investment terms than in previous financings

and the investments would likely
become impaired

We review our investments quarterly for indicators of impairment however for non-

marketable
equity securities the impairment analysis may require significant judgment

to identify events or circumstances that would
likely

have significant adverse effect on

the fair value of the investment The indicators that we use to identify
those events or

circumstances include the investees revenue and
earnings

trends relative to

predefined
milestones and overall business prospects the technological feasibility

of

the investees products and technologies
the

general
market conditions in the in

vestees industry or geographic area including adverse regulatory or economic changes

factors related to the investees ability to remain in business such as the investees

liquidity and the rate at which the investee is
using

its cash and the investees receipt

of additional funding at lower valuation

Investments identified as having an indicator of impairment are subject to further

analysis to determine if the investment is other-than-temporarily impaired in which case

we write the investment down to its fair value using the framework required by Accounting

Standards Codification ASC 820 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures ASC

820 When an investee is not considered viable from financial or technological point

of view we write down the entire investment since we consider the estimated fair market

value to be nominal If an investee obtains additional
funding

at valuation lower than

our carrying amount or requires new round of
equity funding to stay in operation

and

the new funding does not appear imminent we presume that the investment is other-

than-temporarily impaired unless
specific

facts and circumstances indicate otherwise

We recognized $0.8 million impairment charge in our portfolio
of non-marketable

equity securities in 2011 none in 2010 and 2009

Income Taxes

The net deferred tax asset at December 31 2011 was S23.4 million compared to

net deferred tax liability of $1.3 million at December 31 2010 driven
by

the $31.0

million benefit from the $84.6 million contract termination charge associated with the

SDS Direct transaction For our deferred future tax benefits we believe that our earnings

during the periods when the temporary differences become deductible will be sufficient

to realize the related future income tax benefits For those jurisdictions where the expiration

date of tax carryforwards or the projected operating
results indicate that realization is

not likely valuation allowance is provided

In the ordinary course of business there is inherent uncertainty in quantifying our in

come tax positions
We assess our income tax

positions
and record tax benefits for all

years subjectto examination based upon managements evaluation of the facts circum

stances and information available at the
reporting

date For those tax positions where

it is more likely than not that tax benefit will be sustained we have recorded the
largest

amount of tax benefit with
greater

than 50
percent

likelihood of being realized upon

ultimate settlement with
taxing authority For those income tax positions

where it is

not more likely than not that tax benefit will be sustained no tax benefit has been rec

ognized in the financial statements We
adlust

these unrecognized tax benefits including

any impact on the related interest and penalties in light
of

changing
facts and circum

stances number of years may elapse
before particular matter for which we have es

tablished an unrecognized tax benefit is audited and fully resolved To the extent we

prevail in matters for which we have recorded an unrecognized benefit or are required

to pay amounts in excess of what we have recorded our effective tax rate in
given

fi

nancial statement period could be materially
affected An unfavorable tax settlement

might require use of our cash and/or result in an increase in our effective tax rate in the

year
of resolution favorable tax settlement would be recognized as reduction in our

effective tax rate in the
year

of resolution For discussion of current tax matters see

Note 10 to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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In assessing the need for valuation allowance we estimate future taxable income

considering
the feasibility of ongoing fax

planning strategies
and the

realizability
of tax

loss carryforwards Valuation allowances related to deferred tax assets can be affected

by changes to tax laws changes to statutory tax rates
and future taxable income levels

In the event we were to determine that we would not be able to realize all or portion

of our deferred tax assets in the future we would reduce such amounts through charge

to income in the
period in which that determination is made or when tax law changes

are enacted Conversely if we were to determine that we would be able to realize our

deferred tax assets in the future in excess of the net carrying amounts we would decrease

the recorded valuation allowance through an increase to income in the period in which

that determination is made Changes in deferred tax asset valuation allowances recorded

in business combination and income tax uncertainties after the acquisition date

generally
will affect income tax expense

Depreciable Lives of
Properly Plant

and Equipment

ATMIs net property plant
and equipment at December 2011 and 2010 was

Si 16.3 million and Si 19.1 million respectively representing 22.6 percent and 22.3

percent respectively
of the Companys consolidated total assets Depreciation expense

for the
years

ended December 31 201 2010 and 2009 was S23.3 million S22.8

million and 522.3 million respectively Management judgment is required in the de

termination of the estimated
depreciable

lives that are used to calculate annual

depreciation expense
and accumulated depreciation

Property plant and equipment are recorded at cost
and

depreciated over the assets

useful lives on straight-line basis for financial
reporting purposes The estimated useful

life
represents

the projected period of time that the asset will be productively employed

by the Company and is determined by management based on many factors including

historical
experience

with similar assets and
technological

life
cycles

Circumstances and

events relating to these assets are monitored to ensure that changes in asset lives or im

pairments are identified and prospective depreciation expense or impairment expense is

adjusted accordingly The depreciation periods used are buildings to 35 years ma

chinery
and equipment to 15 years software to 10

years cylinders
and

canisters

ito 15 years furniture and fixtures years and leasehold improvements over the

lesser of the lease term or estimated useful life We use accelerated depreciation methods

for tax
purposes

where
appropriate

Equi lyB used Compensation

We account for awards of
equity-based compensation under our employee stock

plans

using the fair value method Accordingly we estimate the grant dote fair value of our

equity-based awards and amortize this fair value to compensation expense over the req

uisite service period or vesting
term To estimate the fair value of our stock

option awards

we currently use the Black-Scholes-Merton
options-pricing

model The determination of

the fair value of equity-based
awards on the date of

grant using an options-pricing
model

is affected
by our then current stock

price as well as assumptions regarding
number of

complex and
sublective

variables Management is required to make certain judgments

for these variables which include the expected stock price volatility over the term of the

awards the expected term of options based on employee exercise behaviors and the

risk-free interest rate For awards
granted subsequent to January 2006 expected

stock

price volatility is based on the historical volatility of ATMI common stock for period

shorter than the
expected term of the

options We have excluded the historical stock price

volatility prior to the
public announcement regarding

the sale of our non-core businesses

in 2004 because those businesses that were sold represented significant portion
of

ATMIs consolidated business and were subject to considerable cyclicolity associated with

the semiconductor equipment industry
which drove increased

volatility
in ATMIs stock

price The expected term of options granted represents
the period of time that options

are expected to be outstanding The risk-free rate is based on the U.S Treasury yield

curve in effect at the time of
grant

for
period

commensurate with the estimated
expected

term We recognize expense only for those awards expected to vest If actual results are

not consistent with our assumptions and judgments used in
estimating key assumptions

in future periods the stock
option expense

that the Company records for future
grants

may differ
significantly

from what the Company has recorded in the current period

Equity-based compensation expense is
generally recognized on straight-line or

accelerated attribution basis over the estimated service period of the awards

Fair Value Measurements

All of our financial assets and liabilities are measured at fair value based upon Level

or Level
inputs as defined under ASC 820 with the

exception
of one auction-rate

security

which has been measured using Level inputs because the security is illiquid For Level

measurements we use quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities

For Level measurements we use observable
inputs

other than Level pices such as

quoted pricesfor similar assets and liabilities quoted prices in markets with insufficientvol

ume or infrequent transactions less active markets or model-derived valuations in which

all
significant inputs are observable or can be derived

principally from or corroborated by

observable market data for substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities For Level

measurements we use unobservable
inputs to the valuation

methodology
that are significant

to the measurement of fair value of assets or liabilities

The calculation of fair value for our auction-rate security requires
critical judgments

and estimates by management including assumptions
about the anticipated term and

the yield that market participant would require to purchase such security in the current

market environment As of December 31 2011 we have recorded temporary impair

ment charge of $0.9 million net of tax within the
caption

Accumulated other compre

hensive income on the Consolidated Balance Sheets We determined the fair value of

our auction-rate
security by incorporating assumptions about the

anticipated
term and

the yield that market participant would require to purchase such security in the current

market environment We determined that there was no incremental credit loss in 2011

and 2010 In 2009 we recorded credit loss of S0.3 million in our Consolidated State

ment of Operations While we believe the valuation methodologies are appropriate the

use of valuation
methodologies is highly udgmental and changes in methodologies or

market conditions for this
security can have material

impact on the values of the related

assets our financial
position

and overall liquidity
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On November 22010 ATMIs Belgian subsidiary acquired the remaining 60 percent

of the outstanding
shares of Artelis S.A As

part
of the

acquisition we recognized
li

ability
for the fair value of

contingent payments tied to future revenue performance for

the fiscal
years

2012 through 2014 The contingent payment tied to future revenue

performance
has

range
of

possible
outcomes from $0 to $23.3 million The fair value

measurements were calculated
using

unobservable inputs primarily using
discounted

cash flow analyses discounted
average

rate of 5.3
percent

and reliance on the market

and
product knowledge of internal experts classified as Level

requiring significant

management judgment due to the absence of quoted market
prices or

observable inputs for assets of similar nature

As of December 31 2011 and 2010 the fair value of our auction-rate security was

$3.3 million and $2.9 million respectively
As of December 31 2011 and 2010 the

fair value of our Artelis acquisition contingent performance obligations associated with

future revenue was $7.2 million and $8.4 million respectively
See Notes and for

additional discussion regarding our auction-rate security and Notes and for

additional details
regarding

the Artelis
acquisition

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

The assets and liabilities of acquired businesses are recorded under the
purchase

method

of
accounting at their estimated fair values at the dates of

acquisition
Goodwill

represents

costs in excess of fair values assigned to the underlying net assets of acquired businesses

Goodwill and intangible assets deemed to have indefinite lives are not amortized but

are subject to annual impairment testing In 2011 we adopted ASU 2011-08 Intan

giblesGoodwill and Other Topic 350 Testing
Goodwill for Impairment which sim

plified
how entities are required to test goodwill for impairment by permitting an initial

assessment of qualitative factors to determine whether it is more likely than not that the

fair value of reporting unit is less than its carrying amount as basis for
determining

whether it is necessary to perform
the

iwo-step goodwill impairment test

For reporting units where the qualitative determination does not indicate that
it is

more likely
than not that the fair value of

reporting
unit is more than its

carrying value

the two-step test is performed In order to perform the two-step test we estimate the

fair value of
reporting

unit based on the best information available as of the date of

the assessment which primarily incorporates management assumptions about
expected

future cash flows and contemplates other valuation techniques Future cash flows can be

affected by changes in the
global economy and local economies changes in the micro

electronics and biopharmaceutical industries changes in technology and the execution

of managements plans We concluded that goodwill was not impaired during
2011

10% decline in
projected reporting

unit cash flows would not
impact

the conclusion we

reached in 2011 Although no goodwill impairment has been recorded to date there can

be no assurances that future
goodwill impairments will not occur

Other Long-Lived Amortizable Assets

We evaluate the potential impairment of other long-lived assets when
appropriate

If

the
carrying

value of assets exceeds the sum of the undiscounted expected future cash

flows the carrying value of the asset is written down to fair value

Recent
Accounting

Pronouncements

See Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements for information concerning

recently
issued

accounting pronouncements

Related Party
Transactions

The Companys related parties are primarily unconsolidated equity
affiliates The Com

pany
did not engage in any material transactions involving related parties that included

terms or other
aspects

that differ from those which would be negotiated
with

independent

parties In November 2011 Intermolecular
completed an initial

public offering and we

converted our preferred
shores into common shores and exercised warrant into common

shares which caused us to reclassify our investment from Other non-current assets to

Marketable securities as the securities are now publicly
traded At December 31 2011

we own common shares with market value of $33.1 million

Results of Operations

This table shows the effect of pretax compensation cost arising
from equity-based

payment arrangements on the Consolidated Statements of Operations in thousands

December 31 2011 2010 2009

Costof revenues 496 357 315

Research and development 900 866 523

Selling general and administrative 6143 6470 4902

Total
equity-based compensation expense $7539 $7693 $5740

Year Ended December 312011 Compared to

Year Ended December 312010

Overview

Results for the
year

ended December 31 2011 include revenues of $390.1 million

an agreement for the reacquisition of license manufacturing and distribution
rights

for

our Safe Delivery Source SDS product line and our first fee-based collaborative

development arrangement with key customer which will allow us to more effectively

demonstrate our High Productivity Development HPD capabilities

The 2011 results include the effects of terminating license manufacturing and dis

tribution agreement associated with our SDS technology in exchange for S95 million

cash payment As result of this agreement we recognized one-time operating charge

of $84.6 million in the fourth
quarter

of 2011 In connection with this agreement rev

enues in the fourth
quarter were unfavorably impacted by $6.9 million associated with

cash payment of $5.1 million to repurchase inventory
due to previously recognized

product shipments into the former distributors channel as well as an estimated $1.8

million net impact due to excess inventory in the SDS distribution channel in
regions

where the former distributor continues to sell product until ATMI secures the appropriate

licenses to fully conduct business which was partially
offset

by
incremental revenues

from the transaction As result of this agreement beginning with the second quarter of

2012 we anticipate increased revenues of $7 million to $8 million
per quarter

200

basis point improvement in
gross margins $2 million to $3 million increase to selling

general and administrative SGA expense per quarter
and an increase of $0.08 to

$0.09 of diluted
earnings per

share
per quarter We anticipate

that we will
spend $2

million on integration-related activities in the first
quarter

of 2012
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For the
year

ended December 31 2011 ATMI revenues increased
by

6.2
percent to

$390.1 million compared to 2010 revenues of $367.3 million including the $6.9

million unfavorable fourth
quarter impact mentioned above The 2011 growth reflects

strength in the first half of 2011 in consumer electronics demand which drove
higher

wafer starts and increased fob utilization followed by lower wafer start growth envi

ronment in the second half of 2011 The revenue growth from 2010 to 2011 was driven

by
17

percent
increase in

copper
materials and 25

percent
increase in life sciences

Our
gross profit margin declined by 70 basis

points
to 47.2 percent in 2011 compared

to 47.9
percent

in 2010 due to the
impact

of fourth
quarter inventory repurchoses an

ticipated price reductions some unanticipated cost overruns
and

product
mix Research

and development expenses RD grew 10.4
percent

in 2011 compared to 2010

primarily driven by product development-related spending
associated with the November

2010
acquisition

of Artelis SGA declined
by

2.2
percent

in 2011 from 2010 due to

$2.4 million benefit related to capital-based state tax credit and $1.7 million gain

from the change in fair value of
contingent

consideration
obligation SGA as percent

of revenues decreased to 21.4
percent

in 2011 compared to 23.3
percent

in 2010 The

operating loss of $37.7 million in 2011 was driven by the $84.6 million one-time con

tract termination
charge

associated with the SDS Direct transaction The 2011 effective

tax benefit rate of 48.8
percent

would have been an effective tax rate of 26.2
percent

excluding the $31.0 million tax benefit from the $84.6 million one-time contract termi

nation charge The 2011 net loss was $20.0 million $0.63 per
diluted share compared

to net income of $39.5 million $1.24 per
diluted share in 2010 The 2011 net loss of

$20.0 million includes the after tax impact of $53.6 million due to the SDS Direct

termination charge

This is summary of selected consolidated earnings information in thousands

December 31 2011 2010 Change

Revenues $390087 $367256 6.2%

Cost of revenues 205957 91248 7.7%

Gross
profit 184130 176008 4.6%

Gross margin 47.2% 47.9% 0.7%

Research and development 53708 48645 10.4%

RD as percent
of revenues 13.8% 13.2% 0.6%

Selling general and administrative 83546 85425 2.2%

SGA as percent
of revenues 21.4% 23.3% .9%

Contract termination 84590

Operating income loss 37714 41938 189.9%

Operating margin 9.7% 11.4% 21.1%

Effective tax benefit rate 48.8% 22.0% 27.0%

Net income loss 20019 39506 50.7%

Earnings loss per diluted share $0.63 $1.24 50.8%

Revenues For the
year

ended December 31 2011 ATMI revenues increased by 6.2

percent to $390.1 million compared to full
year

2010 revenue of $367.3 million The

2011 revenues were negatively impacted by
$6.9 million associated with cash payment

of $5.1 million to repurchase previously recognized product shipments into the former

distributors channel as well as an estimated $1.8 million net impact
due to excess in

ventory
in the SDS distribution channel in

regions
where the former distributor continues

to sell product
until ATMI secures the

appropriate
licenses to fully

conduct business which

was partially
offset by incremental revenues from the transaction The 2011 revenue

growth reflects strength in the first half of 2011 in consumer electronics demand which

drove higher wafer starts and increased fob utilization followed
by

lower wafer start

growth environment in the second half of 2011 The
growth

in revenues in 2011 com

pared to 2010 occurred in both our microelectronics and life sciences product lines Driven

by strong
first half of 2011 revenues in our microelectronics

product
lines grew 4.5

percent
to $351.8 million in 2011 from S336.5 million in 2010 primarily due to strong

growth in our copper products associated with adoption of our materials at the advanced

technology
nodes In our life sciences

product lines revenues increased 24.5
percent

to

$38.3 million in 2011 from $30.7 million in 2010 driven by the transition from qual

ification to volume
production at few customers the additional

placements
of our mixing

and bioreactor platforms in the marketplace and royalties from intellectual
properly

li

censing agreements Given the ongoing pressures
to bring costs down in the consumer

and microelectronics industries we continue to experience pricing pressure
with several of

our legacy products Foreign currency
translation provided 100 basis

point
benefit to

revenue in 2011 driven bya weakening U.S Dollar
against theiapanese Yen and the Euro

Gross Profit In 2011 gross profit of $184.1 million increased 4.6 percent from

$176.0 million in 2010 Our
gross profit margin declined

by
70 basis

points
to 47.2

percent
in 2011 compared to 47.9

percent
in 2010 due to the

impact
of fourth

quarter

inventory repurchases anticipated price reductions some unanticipated cost overruns

and product mix The SDS Direct transaction reduced
gross profit by $4.7 million and

gross profit margin by
60 basis

points
due to the reversal of previously recognized product

shipments the estimated effect of excess channel inventories and incremental transition

services costs Gross
profit in our microelectronics

product
lines increased 3.0

percent
to

$170.7 million in 2011 compared to $1 65.8 million in 2010 Gross profit margin in

microelectronics was approximately 49 percent in 2011 compared to 49 percent in 2010

Gross
profit

in our life sciences product lines increased 31.1
percent

to $1 3.4 million in

2011 compared to $1 0.2 million for the same period in 2010 Life sciences
gross profit

margin increased
year over year to 35

percent
in 2011 from 33

percent
in 2010 Life

sciences
gross profit margin for 2011 includes the effect of the U.S manufacturing

capacity
we brought online in mid-2010
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Research and Development Expenses RD
expense

increased 10.4
percent

to $53.7

million in 2011 compared to $48.6 million in 2010 The increase in 2011
spending

was driven
by

increased
product development spending

associated with the November

2010 Artelis acquisition $3.3 million consumption of material consumables $0.7 mil

lion intellectual
property

fees $0.5 million and rent $0.3 million partially offset

by lower HPD licensing and maintenance $1.8 million and cost reimbursements related

to collaborative development agreement CDA $0.9 million The CDA was executed

in the third
quarter

of 2011 with an advanced memory integrated circuit manufacturer

for the
purpose

of developing molecules including chemical precursors
and material

systems for next-generation semiconductor products
We

recognized
benefit of $0.9

million in 2011 and
expect

to
recognize up to $2.9 million of benefit in 2012

Selling General andAdministrative Expenses SGA declined 2.2
percent

to $83.5

million in 2011 compared to $85.4 million in 2010 The decrease is the result of

$2.4 million benefit related to capital-based state tax credit $1.7 million gain from

the change in fair value of
contingent

consideration
obligation

lower maintenance

$0.7 million legal fees $0.5 million and asset impairments $0.3 million partially

offset by expenses
associated with the Artelis acquisition $3.7 million 2010 bad

debt reserve release of $0.8 million not repeated in 2011 $1.3 million associated with

transition costs related to the SOS Direct transaction
and increased

employee-related

costs $1.3 million

Contract Termination Expense In 2011 we recognized an $84.6 million charge as

sociated with
terminating long-term license manufacturing and distribution agreement

with Matheson Tn-Gas Inc that gives
ATMI

responsibility
for worldwide distribution of

our SOS and VAC
gas storage

and
delivery systems

Operating Income Loss For the
year

ended December 31 2011 we generated an

operating
loss of $37.7 million compared to

operating
income of $41.9 million in 2010

The decrease is primarily result of the SOS Direct contract termination charge and other

items as noted above

Interest Income Interest income was $1.2 million for the
year

ended December 31

2011 compared to $0.9 million for the
year

ended December31 2010 primarily
caused

by higher
invested balances and

slightly improved average yields

Other Income Expense Net In 2011 we reported net other expense of $2.6

million which was driven by $0.8 million impairment reserve for minority investment

losses from equity-method investees of $0.6 million and losses from
foreign exchange

of $1.2 million partially
offset

by $0.7 million
gain

from
previously

reserved invest

ment In 2010 we reported net other income of $7.7 million which was driven by

$5.9 million non-cash gain on fair value of our minority interest in Artelis coincident

with the
acquisition

of the
remaining outstanding shares and $2.5 million

gain
on

the sole of Anji shares

Provision for Income Taxes In 2011 we had an effective income fax benefit rate of

48.8
percent compared to 2010 effective income tax rate of 22.0 percent Excluding

the $31.0 million benefit from the SOS Direct contract termination charge the 2011 ef

fective income tax rate would have been 26.2
percent

The 2011 effective income tax

rate differs from the Federal statutory rate of 35.0 percent primarily
due to the benefit

of the SOS Direct contract termination charge lower income tax rates in foreign jurisdic

tions an increase in certain valuation allowances the U.S RD tax credit equity-based

compensation and state taxes

ATMI has not provided
for U.S federal income and foreign withholding taxes on ap

proximately $92.4 million of undistributed earnings from non-U.S operations as of De

cember 31 2011 because such earnings are intended to be reinvested indefinitely

outside of the United States These
earnings

could become subject to additional tax if

they are remitted as dividends loaned to ATMI or upon
sale of

subsidiary
stock It is not

practicable
to estimate the amount or timing

of the additional tac if any that eventually

might be paid on the foreign earnings

South Korea has granted the Company an income tax exemption that expires in 2014

including the last two
years

at 50 percent
of the exemption The exemption applies only

to income related to one of the Companys product lines The effect of the tax exemption

was to reduce income tax expense by $2.8 million $2.1 million and $1.3 million for

the
years

ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively

At December 31 2011 ATMI had $3.7 million of unrecognized tax benefits which

if
recognized

would favorably affect the effective income tax rate in future periods $0.7

million of this amount is included in deferred taxes and the balance of $3.0 million is

included in the
caption

Other non-current liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheets

together
with $0.4 million of accrued interest net on tax reserves and $0 accrued for

penalties
In January 2012 the Internal Revenue Service completed

U.S tax audit of

tax
years

2008 and 2009 although
the refund claim for tax year

2009 is still subject to

review
by

the Joint Committee on Taxation

Year Ended December 31 2010 Compared to

Year Ended December 31 2009

Overview

During the
year

ended December 31 2010 ATMIs revenues increased by 44.2 per

cent compared to the
year

ended December 31 2009 Growth was seen across all of

our product lines and was primarily the result of higher customer demand driven
by higher

wafer starts and fab utilization and increased demand for life sciences products Our

gross margin increased by 780 basis points to 47.9 percent in 2010 compared to 40.1

percent in 2009 primarily
because of sales volume increases as result of the

improving

global economy and favorable product mix RD grew 30.9 percent in 2010 from 2009

The increase was driven primarily by
increased HPD

licensing/maintenance
and

higher

employee-related spending SGA increased by 11.9
percent

in 2010 from 2009 The

increase is primarily the result of increased employee-related expenses travel
and

legal

expenses SGA as percent of revenues decreased to 23.3 percent in 2010 compared
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to 30.0 percent in 2009 Operating income increased to $41.9 million in 2010 from

loss of $1 1.3 million in 2009 In 2010 we recognized $8.4 million of
gains on equity-

method investments due either to the sale of shores or remeasurement as result of an

acquisition Our effective tax rate was 22.0 percent in 2010 compared to an effective

tax benefit rate of 51.2
percent

in 2009 In 2010 we generated
net income of $39.5

million $1.24 per
diluted share compared to net loss of $6.7 million $0.21 per

diluted share in 2009

On November 2010 ATMIs Belgian subsidiary acquired the remaining 60 percent

of the
outstanding

shares of Artelis S.A The total
accounting purchase

consideration of

$21.8 million included the cash payment of $4.0 million the fair value of
contingent

payments tied to future revenue performance of $8.4 million the
carrying

value of $5.9

million related to our original 40 percent non-controlling ownership interest
and assumed

debt of $3.5 million The
contingent payments tied to future revenue performance

have

range
of

possible
outcomes from SO to maximum of $23.3 million In 2010 we hod

an effective income tax rate of 22.0 percent compared to 2009 effective income tax

benefit rate of 51.2 percent
The 2010 income tax rate differs from the Federal statutory

rate of 35.0
percent primarily due to the benefit of lower income tax rates in foreign lu

risdictions non-taxable investment remeasurement gain
from the Artelis

acquisition

tax benefits on foreign dividends an increase in certain valuation allowances the U.S

RD tax credit reinstatement state taxes and changes in established reserves

This is summary of selected consolidated
earnings

information in thousands

December 31 2010 2009 Change

Revenues $367256 $254704 44.2%

Cost of revenues 191248 52520 25.4%

Gross profit 176008 102184 72.2%

Gross margin 47.9% 40.1% 7.8%

Research and development 48645 37162 30.9%

RD as percent
of revenues 3.2% 14.6% .4%

Selling general and administrative 85425 76359 11.9%

SGA as percent
of revenues 23.3% 30.0% 6.7%

Operating income loss 41938 11337 469.9%

Operating margin 11.4% 4.5% 15.9%

Effective tax rate 22.0% 51 .2% 73.2%

Net income loss 39506 6660 693.2%

Earnings per
diluted share $1.24 50.21 690.5%

Revenues Revenues increased 44.2 percent to $367.3 million in 2010 from $254.7

million in 2009 Growth was seen across all of our product
lines and was primarily

the

result of
higher

customer demand driven by increased wafer starts and increased demand

for life sciences products Growth occurred in both our microelectronics and life sciences

product lines but was more pronounced in the microelectronics
product lines primarily

as result of improved wafer starts and fab utilization rates due in large part
to the

macroeconomic
recovery

and also driven
by strength

in demand for our copper-related

materials especially in memory applications Revenues in 2009 were also negatively

impacted by excess inventory in the SDS distribution channel Revenues in our micro

electronics
product

lines grew 45.9
percent

to $336.5 million in 2010 from $230.7

million in 2009 In our life sciences product line revenues grew 28.1 percent to $30.7

million in 2010 compared to $24.0 million in 2009 The
growth in life sciences revenues

was driven by continuing industry shift to disposables which is driving demand for our

single-use mixing and containment technologies While demand in general has been

improving given
the

pressures
to bring costs down in the consumer and microelectronics

industries we continued to
experience pricing pressure

with several of our older products

including SDS and our photo and
copper

material
products

The effect of
foreign currency

was not significant
in 2010 as declines associated with the U.S dollars weakness

against
the Japanese Yen were partially offset by strengthening against

the Euro

Gross Profit Gross
profit

increased 72.2
percent

to $1 76.0 million in 2010 from

$102.2 million in 2009 The increase in
gross profit was driven primarily by increased

revenues across our product lines as result of improved economic conditions and mix

benefit driven by increased sales volumes in our
copper materials SDS and life sciences

product lines partially
offset

by
continued

pricing pressure
Gross

profit
in 2009 was re

duced
by $3.1 million from asset impairment charges and by $2.1 million of expense to

increase our reserves for excess and obsolete inventories Gross profit in our microelectronics

product
lines increased 74.4

percent to $165.8 million in 2010 from 595.1 million in

2009 Gross profit margin in microelectronics was approximately 49 percent in 2010

compared to approximately 41 percent in 2009 Gross profit in our life sciences product

lines increased 43.5 percent to $10.2 million in 2010 compared to $7.1 million for

2009 Gross profit margins in our life sciences product lines also improved from approx

imately 30 percent in 2009 to approximately 33 percent in 2010 driven
by

increased

revenue volumes

Research and Development Expenses RD increased 30.9
percent

to $48.6 million

in 2010 compared to $37.2 million in 2009 as we continued to fund our investments

to develop advanced materials and HPD
capabilities

The increase in 2010
spending was

driven
by

increased HPD
licensing

and maintenance contract costs $6.6 million higher

employee-related spending $2.8 million driven by increased incentives 51.3 million

higher salaries $0.6 million and equity-based compensation $0.3 million increased

depreciation $0.8 million higher outside services spending $0.6 million increased

travel $0.5 million maintenance $0.4 million increased consumption of materials

and consumables $0.4 million and
higher

intellectual
property

costs $0.5 million

partially offset by significantly lower asset impairments $1.6 million As percentage

of revenues spending was lower in 201013.2 percent
than in 2009 14.6 percent

because of economic improvements growth in wafer starts and fab utilization rates

which resulted in increased revenues
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Selling General andAdministrative Expenses SGA increased 11.9
percent $9.1 mil

lion to $85.4 million in 2010 from S76.4 million in 2009 SGA as percentage
of

revenues decreased to 23.3 percent in 2010 compared to 30.0
percent

in 2009 The in

crease in 2010 spending was due to higher employee-related costs $8.8 million caused

primarily by higher incentive compensation $4.6 million higher salaries on increased pay

roll $0.9 million and equity-based compensaon $1.5 million We also increased
spending

Ill travel and entertainment $1.8 million employee recruitment $1.4 million and

legal expenses $1.3 million which were driven by both business development and liti

gation
activities These spending increases were partially

offset by increased distributor

marketing
reimbursements Si .1 million lower depreciation 50.8 million and signif

icantly
lower asset impairments $2.2 million The results in 2009 included $2.5 million

of asset impairment charges related primarily to redundant
enterprise management soft

ware and $1.4 million
charge to increase bad debt expense due to customer bankruptcies

and
general

economic conditions

Operating
Income loss In 2010 we generated operating income of $41.9 million

compared to an operating
loss of $11.3 million in 2009 This change is from variety

of factors as noted above

Interest Income Interest income decreased to $0.9 million in 2010 from $1.2 million in

2009 The primary reason for the decrease was lower
average yields on invested balances

Impairment of lnveslrnenls The results for 2009 included $2.5 million impairment

charge primarily
related to write-down associated with an auction-rate security

Other Income Expense Net In 2010 Other income expense net of $7.7 mil

lion was driven
by $5.9 million non-cash investment gain on our minority interest in

Artelis $2.5 million gain from the sale of
portion

of our equity
investment in

Anli

$0.5 million gain
from the sale of marketable

equity security
and the release of notes

receivable reserves of $0.4 million In 2009 we recognized $1.2 million of losses from

investments accounted for by the equity-method and $0.2 million of realized and

unrealized losses on foreign exchange

Provision Benefit for Income Taxes In 2010 we had an effective income tax rate

of 22.0
percent compared to 2009 effective income tax benefit rate of 51.2 percent

The 2010 income tax rate differs from the Federal
statutory rate of 35.0

percent primarily

due to the benefit of lower income tax rates in foreign lurisdictions non-taxable in

vestment remeasurement gain
from the Artelis

acquisition
tax benefits on foreign divi

dends an increase in certain valuation allowances the U.S RD tax credit reinstatement

state taxes and changes in established reserves The 2009 income tax benefit rate of

51.2 percent
differs from the Federal

statutory
rate of 35.0

percent primarily
due to the

benefit of lower income tax rates in foreign lurisdictions
and net $0.7 million reversal

of previously established reserves primarily resulting
from the lapse of the applicable

statutes of limitations As of December 31 2010 the Company had net deferred tax

liability on the balance sheet of $1.3 million primarily
because of temporary differences

i.e accrued liabilities inventory adlustments equity-based compensation and depre

ciation and amortization state tax credit
carryforwards foreign and state net operating

loss
carryforwards

and RD tax credits in Taiwan

Liquidity
and Capital Resources

We assess liquidity in terms of our ability to
generate

cash to fund our operating
and

investing
activities Of particular importance to management are cash flows generated by

operating activities
cash used for

capital expenditures and cash used for acquisitions

Until
required

for use in the business we invest our cash reserves in bank deposits

certificates of deposit money market securities government and government-sponsored

bond obligations
and other

interest-bearing
marketable debt instruments in accordance

with our investment policy
We have contracted with investment advisers to invest our

funds consistent with our investment policy
The value of our investments maybe adversely

affected by increases in interest rates instability in the global financial markets that re

duces the
liquidity

of securities included in our portfolio
and

by
other factors which may

result in other-than-temporary
declines in value of the investments which could impact

our financial
position

and our overall liquidity Each of these events may cause us to

record charges to reduce the carrying
value of our investment portfolio or to sell invest

ments for less than our acquisition
cost We attempt to mitigate these risks with the as

sistance of our investment advisors
by investing

in high-quality securities and monitoring

the overall risk profile of our portfolio We also maintain well-diversified portfolio that

limits our credit
exposure through

concentration limits set within our investment policy

We have financed our operating
needs and capital expenditures through

cash flows

from our operations and existing
cash We

expect
to continue to finance current and

planned operaflng requirements principally through cash from operations as well as exithng

cash resources We believe that these funds will be sufficient to meet our operating re

quirements
for the foreseeable future Howeveç we may from time to time seek additional

funding through
combination of equity and debt financings or from other sources

We continue to invest in RD to provide future sources of revenue through the devel

opment of new products as well as through additional uses for existing products
We

consider RD and the development of new products
and

technologies an integral part

of our growth strategy and core competency of the Company Likewise we continue to

make capital expenditures
in order to expand and modernize manufacturing

and RD

facilities around the globe and to drive efficiencies throughout
the

organization
Addi

tionally management considers on continuing basis potential acquisitions
of

strategic

technologies
and businesses complementary to the Companys current business

This is summary of our cash flows in thousands

Year Ended December 31 2011 2010

Cash provided by used for

Operating
activities

Investing activities

Financing activities

Effects of exchange rate changes on cash

$30962

2471

379

1071

$65976

58754

3691

379
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Operating Activities

In 2011 we used S31 .0 million of cash for operations which represents change

of $96.9 million from the S66.O million generated from
operations

in 2010 Cash

used in
operations

in 2011 included an $84.6 million cash charge related to the

Matheson contract termination partially
offset by $31.0 million in deferred taxes as

sociated with the charge Cash used for
operations was also the result of increases in

inventories and other assets and decreases in accrued expenses Partially offsetting

these items were decrease in accounts receivable and an increase in other liabilities

Inventories increased by $10.8 million in 2011 driven by stronger demand $3.0

million of SDS purchases from Matheson in the fourth quarter and an increase to

other strategic safely stocks

Investing Activities

Net cash used for
investing activities decreased

by $56.3 million in 2011 to $2.5

million The
primary

reason for the decrease in 2011 was that we did not reinvest funds

in marketable securities as existing marketable securities matured through the second

half of the year in order to ensure liquid
funds were on hand for the

anticipated $95.0

million contract termination payment to Matheson Other than changes in marketable

securities our investing activities primarily relate to purchases of
property plant and

equipment and
acquisitions

Cash used for
investing activities in 2011 was driven by

S2O.7 million of capital expenditures $10.4 million associated with the
acquisition

of

license manufacturing distribution
rights and non-compete agreement from Matheson

and $6.7 million for cost-basis investment Cash used for
investing activities in the

year
ended 2010 was driven by the $3.9 million

acquisition
of Artelis minority equity

investments cash used for net purchases
of marketable securities of $40.8 million and

$1 6.2 million of
capital expenditures partially

offset
by S5.2 million of cash

generated

from the sale of shares of one of our equity-method investments

Financing
Activities

Financing activities generated cash of $0.4 million in 2011 compared to use of

cash of S3.7 million in 2010 The cash
provided in 2011 was related to the

proceeds

from the exercise of stock
options

of $1.3 million partially offset by share
repurchases

of SO.9 million The $3.7 million use of cash in 2010 was comprised of share repurchases

of $2.6 million the repayment of loan assumed in the Artelis
acquisition

of S2.4

million and net repayments of credit lines of $0.5 million partially offset by the proceeds

from the exercise of stock
options

of $1.8 million

Summaiy of Contractual Obligalions

This is summary of consolidated debt lease purchase and other obligations at December 31 2011 see Notes and 14 of the Consolidated Financial Statements

in thousands

Payments Due by
Period

Less than

Total Year 1-3 Years 4-5 Years Thereafter

Contractual obligations

Capital
leases 205 48 133 24

Operating leases 12306 3579 5011 929 2787

Purchase obligations

Inventory 15622 15622

Capital
954 954

Other 10188 10188

Total 26764 26764

Other long-term liabilities 5145 4756 389

Total debt lease purchase and

other long-term liability obligations $44420 S3O391 $9900 $953 $3176

Includes $7.6 million commitment to purchase RD services associated with strategic alliance partner

Includes $3.6 million of asset retirement obligations

See Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion of leases
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Off-Balance SheetArrangements

In the fourth
quarter

of 2011 we extended the contract term of an existing com

mitment with Intermolecular to purchase
RD technology and

processes
The extension

maintains our current RD infrastructure and expense structures over the next three

years The cash payment commitments are Si 1.5 million $5.0 million $1.3 million

and $1.3 million in fiscal
years 201120122013 and 2014 respectively In 2011

there was Si .3 million increase in commitments for that year due to the contract

extension The contract extension did not include any
full

time-equivalent resource

commitments beyond 2012

Operations
Outside the United States

For the
years

ended December31 2011 2010 and 2009 sales outside the United

States including Asia and Europe accounted for 79.4 percent 82.3 percent
and 80.2

percent respectively
of our revenues Sales to Taiwan for the

years
ended December31

20112010 and 2009 were 25.0 percent 24.3 percent and 21.8 percent respectively

of our revenues Sales to Japan for the years ended December 31 2011 2010 and

2009 were 11.1
percent

13.5
percent

and 14.3
percent respectively of our revenues

Sales to South Korea for the
years

ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 were

20.3
percent

18.4
percent

and 20.2
percent respectively of our revenues Management

anticipates that sales outside the United States will continue to account for
significant

percentage
of our total revenues ATMI has wholly-owned subsidiaries in Taiwan Singa

pore China Japan and Germany where the Company sells and services several
product

lines ATMI also has wholly-owned subsidiary in South Korea that manufactures sells

and distributes materials packaging materials delivery equipment and thin-film materials

to the semiconductor and
flat-panel display

markets in South Korea and NOWPak to

the Taiwan and Japanese markets In addition ATMI has two wholly-owned subsidiaries

in Belgium that manufacture and sell
high-purity

materials
packaging products primarily

to the life sciences industry

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

Interest Rate Risk

As of December 31 2011 the Companys cash and cash
equivalents

and marketable

securities included bank deposits time deposits money market securities and government

and government-sponsored bond obligations As of December 31 2011 an increase of

100 basis
points

in interest rates on securities with maturities
greater

than one
year

would reduce the fair value of the Companys marketable securities portfolio by approx

imately $0.4 million
Conversely

reduction of 100 basis
points

in interest rates on se

curities with maturities greater than one
year

would increase the fair value of the

Companys marketable securities
portfolio by approximately $0.5 million

Foreign Currency Exchange Risk

Most of the Companys sales are denominated in U.S dollars and as result the Company

has limited
exposure

to foreign currency exchange
risk with

respect to sales made Approxi

mately
40

percent
of the Companys revenues for the

year
ended December 31 2011 were

denominated in Japanese Yen JPY Korean Won KRW and Euros EUR but ama

aMy of the product is sourced in U.S dollars Management periodically
reviews the Companys

exposure
to currency

fluctuations This
exposure may change over time as business practices

evolve and could have material effect on the Companys financial results in the future We

use forward
foreign exchange

contracts to hedge specific exposures relating to intercompany

payments and anticipated but not yet committed intercompany
sales

primarily parent

company export
sales to subsidiaries at pre-established

U.S dollar prices The terms of the

forward foreign exchange contracts are generally
matched to the

underlying
transaction being

hedged and are typically
under one year

Because such contracts are directly
associated with identified transactions they are

an effective hedge against
fluctuations in the value of the foreign currency underlying

the transaction We recognize in earnings Other income expense net changes in

the fair value of all derivatives designated as fair value hedges We generally do not

hedge overseas sales denominated in foreign currencies or translation
exposures Further

we do not enter into derivative instruments for trading or speculative purposes and all

of our derivatives were highly effective throughout
the

periods reported

At December 31 2011 we held forward
foreign currency exchange contracts as eco

nomic hedges with notional amounts totaling $22.0 million which are being
used to

hedge recorded foreign-denominated liabilities and which will be settled in either WY

KRW FUR or New Taiwan Dollars NTD Holding
other variables constant if there

were 10
percent

decline in foreign exchange rates against the U.S dollar for the WY

KRW FUR and NTD the fair market value of the
foreign exchange contracts outstanding

at December 31 2011 would increase by approximately $0.3 million which would be

expected to be fully offset by foreign exchange gains on the amounts being hedged

The effect of an immediate 10
percent change in other foreign exchange rates would

not be expected to have material effect on the Companys future
operating

results or

cash flows

Changes in Market Risk

Although we have seen mixed signs
of

stability
the

global economy continues to deal

with the
repercussions

of the
global recession as manifest in the recent European economic

crisis that caused significant credit and financial market swings There can be no assurance

that there will not be further deterioration in credit and financial markets and deterioration

of confidence in economic conditions These economic uncertainties affect businesses such

as ours in number of ways making it difficult to accurately forecast and plan our future

business activities

Controls and Procedures

Conclusion Regarding the Effectiveness of

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management with the
participation

of our Chief Executive Officer CEO and

Chief Financial Officer CFO has evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls

and
procedures as such term is defined in Rules 3a-i 5e and 5d-i 5e under the

Exchange Act as of the end of the period covered by this Annual
Report

There are inherent

limitations to the effectiveness of any system
of disclosure controls and procedures in

cluding the possibility of human error and the circumvention or overriding
of the controls

and
procedures Accordingly even effective disclosure controls and procedures can only

provide
reasonable assurance of achieving their control objectives

Based
upon

this eval

uation our CEO and CFO concluded that as of the end of the period covered by this

Annual
Report our disclosure controls and procedures were effective in that

they provided

reasonable assurance that the information we are required
to disclose in the

reports
we

file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded processed summarized and reported

within the time periods specified in the applicable
rules and forms and that it is accu

mulated and communicated to our management including our CEO and CFO as

appropriate to allow timely
decisions

regarding required disclosure
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

in thousands except per
share

data

December31 2011 2010

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 34523 68648

Marketable securities current
portion 75632 58495

Accounts receivable net of allowances of 5781 and 5783 respectively 51563 54518

Inventories net 73622 62832

Income taxes receivable 3721 4627

Deferred income taxes 4409 6801

Prepaid expenses 14439 14384

Other current assets 13279 12695

Total current assets 271188 283000

Property plant
and equipment net 116275 119053

Goodwill 46546 46981

Other intangibles net 36571 28948

Marketable securities non-current 3329 25429

Deferred income
taxes non-current 19139 2097

Other non-current assets 20638 28081

Total assets 513686 533589

Liabilities and stockholders equity

Current liabilities

Accounts payable 20779 21045

Accrued liabilities 7940 5918

Accrued salaries and related benefits 10469 12163

Income taxes payable 1229 3700

Other current liabilities 4539 3911

Total current liabilities 44956 46737

Deferred income taxes non-current 162 10245

Other non-current liabilities 18237 18182

Commitments and
contingencies Note 14

Stockholders
equity

Preferred
stoclc par

value S.01
per

share 2000 shares authorized none issued

Common stock par
value 5.01

per
shore 100000 shares authorized 399 396

39912 and 39640 issued and 31718 and 31495 outstanding in 2011 and 2010 respectively

Additional paid-in capital 444642 435840

Treasury stock at cost 8194 and 8145 shares in 2011 and 2010 respectively 231173 230272

Retained
earnings 228414 248433

Accumulated other comprehensive income 8049 4028

Total stockholders
equity 450331 458425

Total liabilities and stockholders equity 513686 533589

See accompanying notes
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

in thousands except per share data

Year Ended December 31 2011 2010 2009

Revenues $390087 $367256 $254704

Cost of revenues 205957 191248 52520

Gross profit 184130 176008 102184

Operating expenses

Research and development 53708 48645 37162

Selling general and administrative 83546 85425 76359

Contract termination 84590

Total
operating expenses

221844 34070 11 3521

Operating
income loss 37714 41938 11337

Interest income 1205 949 1196

Impairment of investments 776 2486

Other income expense net 1849 7740 1029

Income loss before income taxes 39134 50627 13656

Provision benefit for income taxes 19115 11121 6996

Net income loss $20019 39506 6660

Earnings loss per common sharebasic $0.63 $1.26 SO.21

Weighted-average shares outstandingbasic 31703 31413 31398

Earnings loss per
common sharediluted $0.63 $1.24 $O.21

Weighted-average shores outstandingdiluted 31703 31895 31398

See accompanying notes
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

in thousands

Balance at December 31 2008

Issuance of 15 shares of common stock pursuant

to the exercise of employee stock options

Purchase of 35 treasury shores

Equity-bused compensation

Income tax deficiency
from

equity-based compensation

Other

Cumulative effect of udoption of new accounting standard

Net lass

Reclassification adjustment related to marketable securities sold

in net unrealized
gain position net of $32 tax provision

Change in fair value on available-for-sale

securities net of deferred income tax of $1139

Cumulative translation adjustment

Comprehensive loss

Balance at December 31 2009

Issuance of 104 shares of common stack
pursuant

to the exercise of employee stock options

Purchase of 179
treasury

shares

Equity-based compensation

Income tax deficiency
from

equity-bused compensation

Other

Net income

Reclassification adjustment
related to marketable securities sold

in net unrealized gain position net of $282 tax provision

Change in fair value on available-for-sale

securities net of deferred income tax of $201

Cumulative translation
adjustment

Comprehensive income

Balance at December 31 2010

Issuance of 71 shares of common stock pursuant

to the exercise of employee stock options

Purchase of 48
treasury

shares

Equity-based compensation

Other

Net loss

Reclassification
adjustment

related to marketable securities sold

in net unrealized
gain position net of SO tax provision

Change in fair value on available-for-sale

securities net of deferred income tax of $4351

Cumulative translation adjustment

Addifloncl

Paid-in

Capital

$421040

236

5740

579

1818

7693

105

Accumulated

Other

Comprehensive

Income

266

236

569

5740

579

6660

55 55

1940

2540

2235

1819

2602

7693

105

39506

481 481

343 343

762 762

40130

4028 458425

1266

901

7539

20019

7119 7119

3097 3097

15998

$450331

See accompanying notes

Common

Stock

$392

Retained

Earnings

$214300

Treasury

Stock

227101

569

Total

$408897

1287 1287

6660

1940

2540

393 426436 227670 208927 3404

2602

411490

39506

396 435840 230272 248433

1265

901

7539

20019

Comprehensive income

Balance at December31 2011 $399 $444642 $231 73 $228414 8049
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

in thousands

27162

29443

7539

1733

594

776

2337

3986

12390

8233

161

1377

30962

26718

4587

7693

5923
544

1050

9034

9197

4680

5169

11643

65976

26799

1880

5740

7298

2486

4343

2790
400

3767

1808

5016

2876

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash mt erest paid

Cash income foxes paid

See accompanying notes

82 188

12237 $1552

Year Ended December 31 2011 2010 2009

520019 39506 6660
Operating activities

Net income loss

Adlustments
to reconcile net income loss to cash used for provided by operating activities

Depreciation
and amortization

Deferred income taxes

Stock-based compensation expense

Gain on remeasurement of
contingent

consideration

Gain on remeasurement of
non-controlling

interest

Long-lived asset impairments

Impairment of investments

Other

Changes in operating assets and liabilities net of effect of
acquisitions

Accounts receivable

Inventories

Other assets

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses income taxes and other liabilities

Net cash used for provided by operating activities

Investing activities

Capital expenditures 20703 16173 17318

Purchases of marketable securities 86448 01235 66540

Proceeds from soles or maturities of marketable securities 121755 60432 65243

Acquisitions of cost-basis and equity-basis investments 6746 3144

Acquisitions net of cash acquired 3928

Intangible rights acquired
due to contract termination net 10410

Proceeds from sale of cost-basis and
equity-basis

investments 5175

Other 81 119 19

Net cash used for
investing

activities 2471 58754 8596

Financing activities

Purchases of treasury stock 901 2602 569

Proceedsfrom exerciseofstockoptions 1266 1819 236

Other 14 2908 662

Net cash provided by used for financing activities 379 3691 995

Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 1071 379 942

Net increase decrease in cash and cash
equivalents 34125 3910 10112

Cash and cash equivalents beginning
of

period 68648 64738 54626

Cash and cash equivalents end of
period 34523 68648 64738

45

$11343
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Description of Business

ATMI Inc together with its subsidiaries collectively referred to as the Company

ATMI or we believes it is among the leading suppliers of high performance materials

materials packaging and materials delivery systems
used worldwide in the manufacture

of microelectronics devices Our products consist of front-end semiconductor performance

materials sub-atmospheric-pressure gas delivery systems
for safe handling and delivery

of toxic and hazardous
gases to semiconductor

process equipment and
high-purity ma

terials packaging and dispensing systems that allow for the reliable introduction of low

volatility liquids and solids to microelectronics and biopharmaceutical processes
ATMI

targets
semiconductor and flat-panel display manufacturers whose products form the

foundation of microelectronics
technology rapidly proliferating through

the consumer

products
information

technology automotive and communications industries The market

for microelectronics devices is continually changing which drives demand for new products

and technologies at lower cost ATMIs customers include
many

of the
leading

semicon

ductor and flat-panel display manufacturers in the world who
target leading-edge

tech

nologies ATMI also addresses an increasing number of critical materials
handling

needs

for the life sciences markets Our proprietary containment mixing and bioreactor tech

nologies are sold to the biotechnology laboratory and cell therapy markets which we

believe offer significant growth potential ATMIs oblective is to meet the demands of our

microelectronics and life sciences customers with solutions that maximize the efficiency

of their
manufacturing processes

reduce
capital or operating casts

and minimize the

time to develop new products
and

integrate
them into their

processes

Consolidation

The Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of all subsidiaries where

control exists
Equity

investments generally consist of 20
percent-

to 50 percent-owned

operations which by definition demonstrate significant influence and instances where

the Company through voting
and similar

rights can exercise significant influence Op

erations less than 20 percent-owned where the Company does not exercise significant

influence are generally
carried at cost Earnings

from
equity

investments are reported

net of income taxes
within the

caption
Other income expense net on the Consolidated

Statements of Operations Intercompany transactions have been eliminated

Use of Estimates

The
preparation

of financial statements in conformity with U.S generally accepted

accounting principles GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions

that affect the
reported

amounts of assets liabilities revenues and expenses While

actual results could differ management believes such estimates to be reasonable

Revenue Recognition and Accounts Receivable

We recognize revenue when the
following

four criteria are met persuasive
evidence

of an arrangement exists delivery has occurred or services have been rendered

the fee is fixed or determinable and collectability is reasonably assured Revenues

from product sales are generally recognized upon delivery to common carrier when

terms are equivalent to free-on-board FOB origin
and upon receipt by customer

when terms are equivalent to FOB destination In instances where final
acceptance

of

equipment is specified by the purchase agreement revenue is deferred until all
acceptance

criteria have been satisfied except when reasonable reserves for returns can be effectively

established due to substantial successful installation history for homogeneous transactions

Should changes in conditions cause management to determine these criteria are not met

for certain future transactions revenue recognized for any reporting period could bead

versely
affected We accrue for sales

returns warranty costs
and other allowances based

on current evaluation of our experience
based on stated terms of the transactions

Prior to October 31 2011 we used Matheson as our exclusive contract manufacturer

and distribution partner for the manufacture and distribution of our Safe Delivery Source

SDS products the Licensed Products Under the terms of the original manufacturing

agreement ATMI retained the right to manufacture 25
percent

of all Licensed Products

while Matheson had the right to manufacture 15
percent

of all Licensed Products Upon

completion
of manufacture ATMI

purchased
all Licensed Products

produced byMatheson

Under the terms of the distribution agreement we received payment from Matheson

based upon formula which was dependent on the sale
price

obtained by Matheson

from its customers ATMI recognized revenue from the sale of Licensed Products to Math

eson when Matheson sold the Licensed Products to its customers because that is when

the sales
price

became fixed and determinable On October 31 2011 we terminated

the agreements with Matheson for manufacturing marketing selling and/or distributing

of our SDS products SOS Direct transaction Matheson will provide ongoing support

services to ATMI during transition period Subject to such
continuing services ATMI as

sumed control of all manufacturing distribution logistics and sales services which Math

eson had
provided globally prior

to execution of the Termination Agreement other than

the distribution of the SDS and VAC
product

lines in Japan which services will continue

to be
provided byMathesons parent company Taiyo Nippon Sanso

Corporation
In those

regions
where Matheson is involved in distributing products during

the transition period

revenues will be recognized only
after sale of the Licensed Products to the end users

During the
years

ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 ATMI recognized

$65.8 million $79.9 million and S37.9 million of revenues from Matheson respectively

During
the

years
ended December 31 20112010 and 2009 ATMI recognized revenues

from Taiwanese
foundry

of S48.7 million S46.8 million and $36.2 million respec

tively
and revenues of $47.6 million $31.3 million and $16.3 million respectively

from
leading

South Korea-based
integrated circuit manufacturer

Billings to customers for
shipping

and
handling are included in revenues Costs incurred

for shipping and handling
of

products are charged to cost of revenues Credit is extended

to customers based on an evaluation of each customers financial condition generally

collateral is not required Revenues are presented in the Consolidated Financial Statements

net of sales allowances and discounts Accounts receivable are presented in the Consol

idated Financial Statements net of the allowance for doubtful accounts Taxes collected

from customers and remitted to governmental authorities are presented on net basis

and
they are excluded from revenues

Accounts Receivable Allowances

The allowance for doubtful accounts is established to represent our best estimate

of the net realizable value of the outstanding accounts receivable balances We esti

mate our allowance for doubtful accounts based on past
due amounts and historical

write-off experience as well as trends and factors
surrounding

the credit risk of the

markets we operate in and the financial
viability

of
specific customers In an effort

to identify
adverse trends we assess the financial health of the markets we operate

in and perform periodic
credit evaluations of our customers and ongoing reviews of

16 ATMI Inc



account balances and
aging

of receivables Amounts are considered
past

due when

payment has not been received within the time frame of the credit terms extended

Write-offs are charged directly against
the allowance for doubtful accounts and occur

only
after all collection efforts have been exhausted

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to significant concentrations

of credit risk consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents marketable securities accounts

receivable and currencyforward exchange contracts We invest our cash and cash equiv

alents and marketable securities in U.S Government and
municipal debt obligations

and time deposits The Company had amounts due from two customers that accounted

for
approximately

34
percent

and 42
percent

of accounts receivable at December 31

2011 and 2010 respectively

Research and Development

Costs associated with the development of new products and improvements to existing

products are charged to expense as incurred

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Marketable Securities

Highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or less when acquired are clas

sified as cash and cash equivalents Investments in publicly traded securities with maturities

greater
than three months when

acquired are classified as marketable securities

All of the Companys marketable securities are classified as available-for-sale as of

the balance sheet date and are reported at fair value with unrealized
gains

and losses

included in stockholders
equity as component of Accumulated other comprehensive

income net of
applicable taxes We

regularly review the fair value of marketable
security

declines below amortized
cost to evaluate whether the decline is other-than-temporary

In making this determination the Company considers all available evidence
including

among other
things

the duration and extent of the decline and the economic factors in

fluencing
the market to determine if the fair value will recover to equal or exceed the

amortized cost If we determine that the fair value will not recover an other-than-

temporary impairment is recognized net of applicable taxes

In April2009 the
guidance on the recognition

and
presentation of other-than-temporary

impairments was amended for debt
securities

like our Massachusetts Educational
Financing

Authority auction-rate security requiring us to determine both the credit and non-credit

components when we conclude an investment has an other-than-temporary impairment

The change resulted in second quarter 2009 recognition of cumulative-effect adjustment

to Retained earnings with corresponding adjustment to Accumulated other compre

hensive income because we recognized non-cash other-than-temporary impairment

of $2.4 million for our auction-rate
security

in the first
quarter

of 2009 As
part

of the

transition of adoption we determined the amount of the impairment related to credit loss

and the amount related to all other factors Since we concluded that we had no current

intent to sell this security and it was not more likely than not that we will be required to

sell the security before anticipated recovery of its remaining amortized cost we adjusted

Accumulated other comprehensive income loss for the component of the impairment

loss due to all other factors net of tax Of the total $2.4 million pretax loss recognized in

the first quarter of 2009 we determined the credit loss was $0.3 million and the loss due

to other factors was $2.1 million The credit loss of $0.3 million is being occreted to the

cost basis of the security ratably over the expected term of the security currently estimated

to be 15 years The estimated fair value of the auction-rate security was $3.3 million at

December 31 2011 and $2.9 million at December 31 2010 See Note for further

discussion regarding the auction-rate security

Marketable securities that are in temporarily impaired position where management

has the ability and intent to hold until anticipated recovery
or maturity are classified as

either current or non-current based on the
remaining

contractual
maturity

of the
security

Those securities in temporarily impaired position
with contractual maturities

greater

than one
year

are classified as non-current

As part
of our ongoing cash management optimization

efforts
during 2011 the Com

pany purchased South Korean time deposits
which were classified as Marketable secu

rities At December 31 2011 and 2010 the Company had $6.9 million and S5.4

million respectively
of time deposits in South Korea

As of December 31 2011 we had $13.1 million of cash and cash
equivalents

in

South Korea $4.1 million of cash and cash
equivalents in Taiwan and $4.2 million in

cash and cash
equivalents

in Japan which were not available to fund domestic U.S op

erations without
repatriation

These funds could become
subject to additional tax if they

are repatriated
It is not practicable to estimate the amount or timing

of the additional

tax if

any
that

eventually might be
paid on these

foreign
funds We do not anticipate

repatriating these funds in the foreseeable future

Non-Marketable Equity and Debt Securities

We selectively invest in non-marketable equity securities of private companies which

range
from early-stage companies that are often still defining their strategic direction to

more mature companies whose products or technologies may directly support an ATMI

product or initiative Our non-marketable
equity

investments are recorded using cost

basis or the
equity-method

of accounting depending on the facts and circumstances of

each investment At December 31 2011 the
carrying

value of our portfolio of
strategic

investments in non-marketable
equity securities totaled $8.0 million $22.3 million at

December 31 2010 The main driver of the reduction from December 31 2010 was

the initial
public offering

of Intermolecular Inc which caused us to
reclassify our in

vestment from Other non-current assets to Marketable securities because the securities

became
publicly

traded In certain
instances we loan funds to

early-stage
investees at

market interest rates to enable them to focus on product
and

technology development

Non-marketable
equity

and debt securities are included in the Consolidated Balance

Sheets under the caption Other non-current assets ATMIs share of the income or losses

of all equity-method investees using
the most current financial information available

which is typically one month behind ATMIs normal
closing date is included in our results

of operations
from the investment date forward

Investments in non-marketable equity securities are inherently risky
and some of

these companies are likely to fail Their success or lack thereoO is dependent on product

development market acceptance operational efficiency attracting and retaining
talented

professionals and other key business success factors In addition depending on their fu

ture
prospects they may not be able to raise additional funds when needed or they may

receive lower valuations with less favorable investment terms than in
previous financings

and the investments would
likely

become impaired

We review our investments quarterly
for indicators of impairment however for non-

marketable equity securities the impairment analysis may require significant judgment

to identify events or circumstances that would
likely

have
significant

adverse effect

on the fair value of the investment The indicators that we use to identify
those events

or circumstances include the investees revenue and
earnings

trends relative to pre

defined milestones and overall business prospects
the

technological feasibility
of

the investees products and technologies the general market conditions in the in

vestees industry or geographic area including adverse regulatory or economic changes

factors related to the investees ability to remain in business such as the investees

liquidity and the rate at which the investee is using its cash and the investees receipt

of additional funding at lower valuation
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Investments identified as having an indicator of impairment are sublect to further

analysis to determine if the investment is other-than-temporarily impaired in which case

we write the investment down to its fair value using
the framework required by Accounting

Standards Codification ASC 820 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures ASC

820 When an investee is not considered viable from financial or technological point

of view we write down the entire investment balance to zero since we consider the esti

mated fair market value to be nominal If an investee obtains additional
funding at

valuation lower than our carrying amount or requires new round of
equity funding to

stay in operation and the new funding does not appear imminent we presume that the

investment is other-than-temporarily impaired unless specific facts and circumstances

indicate otherwise We recognized $0.8 million impairment charge in our portfolio
of

non-marketable
equity

securities in 2011 none in 2010 and 2009

In July 2005 ATMI made an investment in Anji Microelectronics Co Ltd Anji an

entity in the development stage
of

researching
and developing advanced semiconductor

materials with primary operations in Shanghai China We have determined that Anji is

variable interest entity However we have determined that we are not the primary
bene

ficiary of Anji because we do not have the power through voting or similar rights to direct

the activities of Anji that most significantly impact the entitys economic performance and

we are also not
expected

to absorb significant losses or gains from Anji ATMIs carrying

value of this cost basis investment is $3.9 million at December 31 2011 The carrying

value of our investment in
Anji represents

the cash paid less our share of the cumulative

losses during
the

period we used the
equity-method

of accounting At December 31 2011

our maximum
exposure

to loss is $4.3 million which consists of $3.9 million of our carrying

value in this investment plus $0.4 million reserve for
put option

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market using the first-in
first-out method

Inventory
valuation reserves are established in order to report inventories at the lower of

cost or market value on our Consolidated Balance Sheets The determination of inventory

valuation reserves requires management to make estimates and judgments on the future

salability of inventories Valuation reserves for
excess obsolete and slow-moving inventory

are estimated by comparing the inventory
levels of individual

parts to both future sales

forecasts or production requirements
and historical usage rates in order to identify

in

ventory
where the resole value or replacement value is less than inventory cost Other

factors that management considers in determining these reserves include whether indi

vidual
inventory parts or chemicals meet current specifications and cannot be substituted

for or reworked into part currently being
sold or used as service

part
overall market

conditions and other inventory management initiatives

As of December 31 2011 and 2010 we had $2.6 million and $2.4 million

respectively of inventory valuation reserves recorded

Property Plant and Equipment Net

Property plant and equipment are carried at cost net of accumulated
depreciation

Depreciation
is calculated on the straight-line method based on the estimated useful

lives of the
assets

which
range

from to 35
years see Note The estimated useful

life
represents

the
projected period of time that the asset will be productively employed

by the Company and is determined
by management based on many factors including

historical experience with similar assets and
technological

life
cycles

Circumstances and

events relating to these assets are monitored to ensure that changes in asset lives or im

pairments are identified and
prospective depreciation expense

or impairment expense
is

adjusted accordingly
The

depreciation periods used are buildings to 35
years ma

chinery
and equipment to 15 years software to 10 years cylinders and canisters

/to 15 years furniture and fixtures years and leasehold improvements over the

lesser of the lease term or estimated useful life We use accelerated depreciation
methods

for tax
purposes

where appropriate

Asset-Retirement Obligations

An asset-retirement obligation ARO is recognized in the
period in which sufficient

information exists to determine the fair value of the liability
with

corresponding increase

to the carrying amount of the related property plant
and equipment which is then de

preciated over its useful life The liability is initially
measured at fair value and then ac

cretion
expense

is recorded in each subsequent period The Companys AROs are primarily

associated with five leased facilities where we have made substantial modifications to

the leased
property

and we are obligated to restore the facilities at the end of the

contractual term of each lease See Note for further discussion on leases

Income Taxes

Current income taxes are determined based on estimated taxes payable or refundable

on fax returns for the current year Deferred income taxes are determined
using

enacted

tax rates for the effect of temporary differences between the book and tax bases of recorded

assets and liabilities The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of change in tax

rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date The Company

recognizes
the benefit of an income tax position only if it is more likely than not greater

than 50 percent that the tax position
will be sustained upon tax examination based

solely on the technical merits of the tax position Otherwise no benefit can be recognized

The tax benefits recognized are measured based on the largest benefit that has
greater

than 50 percent likelihood of
being

realized upon ultimate settlement We adjust these

unrecognized tax benefits including any impact on the related interest and penalties in

light of changing facts and circumstances number of
years may elapse before par

ticular maffer for which we have established an unrecognized tax benefit is audited and

fully resolved Additionally the Company accrues interest and related penalties
if appli

cable on all tax
exposures

for which reserves have been established consistent with ju

risdictional tax laws which is included in income tax expense See Note 10 for more

information and disclosures on income taxes

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company measures and
reports

financial assets and financial liabilities on fair

value basis consistent with ASC 820 using the following
three

categories
for classification

and disclosure purposes

Level 1-Quoted
prices

in active markets for identical assets and liabilities Level

assets and liabilities consist of cash money marketfund deposits time deposits certain

of our marketable
equity instruments and forward

foreign currency exchange contracts

that are traded in an active market with sufficient volume and
frequency

of transactions

level 2Observable
inputs

other than Level
prices

such as quoted prices
for

similar assets or liabilities quoted prices in markets with insufficient volume or infrequent

transactions less active markets or model-derived valuations in which all significant

inputs
are observable or can be derived principally

from or corroborated by observable

market data for substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities Level assets include

certain of our marketable debt instruments with quoted market prices that are traded in

less active markets or priced using quoted market
price

for similar instruments

Level 3-Unobservable
inputs

to the valuation methodology that are significant to

the measurement of fair value of assets or liabilities At December 31 2011 our

auction-rate security and the Artelis acquisition contingent
consideration payment liability

are the only items reflected in this category

See Note for more information regarding the details methods and
assumptions

used to estimate the fair value of our other financial instruments
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Foreign Currency Exchange Contracts

We use forward foreign currency exchange contracts to hedge specific or anticipated

exposures relating to intercompany payments primarily
U.S

export
sales to subsidiaries

at pre-established U.S dollar prices intercompany loans and other
specific

and identified

exposures The terms of the forward foreign currency exchange contracts are matched to

the underlying transaction being hedged and are typically
under one year Because such

contracts are directly associated with identified transactions they are an effective hedge

against
fluctuations in the value of the foreign currency underlying

the transaction

Changes in the fair value of economic hedges are recognized in earnings as an offset

to the change in the fair value of the underlying exposures being hedged We do not

enter into derivative instruments for trading or speculative purposes At December 31

2011 we did not have any cash flow hedges outstanding

Counterparties to forward
foreign currency exchange contracts are major banking in

stitutions
with credit

ratings
of investment grade or betteç and no collateral is required

There are no significant
risk concentrations We believe the risk of incurring losses on

derivative contracts related to credit risk is remote

Goodwill and Other Indefinite-Lived
Intangible

Assets

The assets and liabilities of acquired
businesses are recorded under the purchase

method of accounting at their estimated fair values at the dates of
acquisition

Good

will
represents

costs in excess of fair values
assigned

to the underlying net assets of

acquired businesses

Goodwill and intangible assets deemed to have indefinite lives are not amortized but

are subject to annual impairment testing
In 2011 we adopted ASU 2011-08 Intan

gibles Goodwill and other Topic 350 Testing
Goodwill for Impairment which sim

plified how entities are required to test goodwill
for impairment by permitting an initial

assessment of qualitative factors to determine whether it is more likely
than not that the

fair value of the
reporting

unit is less than its carrying amount asa basis for
determining

whether it is
necessary

to perform the two-step goodwill impairment test

For
reporting

units where the qualitative determination does not indicate that it is

more likely
than not that the fair value of

reporting
unit is more than its carrying value

the Iwo-step test is performed In order to perform
the

two-step test we estimate the

fair value of
reporting unit based on the best information available as of October 31

2011 which primarily incorporates management assumptions about expected future

cash flows and contemplates other valuation techniques No
goodwill impairment has

been recorded to date

Other Long-Lived Assets

We evaluate the potential impairment of other
long-lived

assets when indicators of

impairment are present If the carrying
value of assets exceeds the sum of the undis

counted expected future cash flows the
carrying

value of the asset is written down to fair

value We amortize acquired patents
and other amortizable intangible assets over their

estimated useful lives All amortizable
intangible assets are amortized

using
the straight-

line method over the estimated useful lives of the
assets ranging

from to 15 years

Intercompany Loans

In certain circumstances the Company maintains intercompany agreements with and

among our wholly-owned subsidiaries under which funds are provided to subsidiaries to

finance general business activities Since settlement of these agreements is not expected

in the foreseeable future and there is no repayment schedule as part
of the agreements

we treat these loans as permanent advances Therefore any associated foreign exchange

gains
and losses are deferred in Accumulated other

comprehensive
income in the period

in which they arise

Translation of Foreign Currencies

We conduct business in many
different currencies and accordingly are subject to the

inherent risks associated with foreign exchange rate movements The financial position

and results of operations
of

many
of our foreign

subsidiaries are measured using the local

currency
as the functional currency Foreign currency-denominated assets and liabilities

are translated into U.S dollars at the exchange rates existing
at the respective balance

sheet dates and income and
expense

items are translated at the
average exchange rates

during the respective periods The aggregate
effects of

translating
the balance sheets of

these subsidiaries are deferred as separate component of Stockholders equity

Equity-Based Compensation

The Company recognizes compensation expense
in its Consolidated Financial State

ments for all share-based payments granted based on the fair value on the date of
grant

For share-based payments granted with service period vesting restriction compensation

expense is recognized on straight-line basis or accelerated attribution method over

the awards respective vesting period
For share-based payments granted

with per

formance condition we accrue compensation expense when we determine it is probable

that the awards will be earned

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2011 the FASB issued
Accounting

Standards Update ASU or Update

2011-4 Fair Value Measurement Topic 820 Amendments to Achieve Common Fair

Value Measurement and Disclosure Requirements in U.S GMP and IFRS This Update

provides guidance which is expected
to result in common fair value measurement and

disclosure requirements
between U.S GMP and IFRS and should be applied prospec

tively It is not intended for this Update to result in change in the application of the re

quirements
in Topic 820 For public entities

the amendments are effective during interim

and annual periods beginning after December 15 2011 Early application by public

entities is not permitted We do not anticipate any
material

impact
from this Update

In June 2011 the FASB issued ASU 2011-5 Comprehensive Income Topic 220

and in December 2011 the FASB issued ASU 2011-12 Comprehensive Income Topic

220 Deferral of the Effective Date for Amendments to the Presentation of Reclassifications

of Items Out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income In ASU 2011-05 an entity

has the option to present
the total of comprehensive income the components of net in

come and the components of other comprehensive income either in single continuous

statement of comprehensive income or in two separate but consecutive statements The

amendments do not change the items portrayal or timing
of what must be reported in

other comprehensive income The amendments in this Update should be applied retro

spectively
In ASU 2011-12 the FASB deferred the effective date pertaining to reclassi

fication adjustments out of accumulated other comprehensive income AOCI until

further notice should continue to
report

reclassifications out of AOCI consistent

with the presentation requirements
in effect

prior
to Update 2011-05 These amendments

are effective for fiscal years and interim periods within those years beginning
after De

cember 152011 Early adoption is permitted
We do not anticipate any

material
impact

from these Updates

In December 2011 the FASB issued ASU 2011-11 Balance Sheet Topic 210 Dis

closures about Offsetting Assets and Liabilities In this update entities are required to

disclose both
gross

information and net information about both instruments and trans

actions eligible
for offset in the statement of financial

position
and instruments and

transactions subject to an agreement similar to master netting arrangement An
entity

is required to apply
the amendments retrospectively for annual reporting periods beginning

on or after January 2013 and interim periods within those annual
periods

We do

not anticipate any material impact from this Update
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Collaborative Arrangements

ATMI entered into collaborative development agreement CDA with an advanced

memory integrated circuit manufacturer for the
purpose

of developing molecules including

chemical
precursors

and material
systems

for
next-generation

semiconductor products

ATMI will use its High Productivity Development platform to
collabaratively

work with

this customer on specific statements of work designed to
develop next-generation

mate

rials The agreement which was signed
in September 2011 and

expires
in August 2012

requires
the customer to make

quarterly payments to ATMI over the contract term The

arrangement has been determined to be reimbursement of research and development

costs and will be recognized as reduction of
expense

under the caption Research and

development in the Consolidated Statements of Operations At December 312011 we

recognized $0.9 million related to the CDA

Each CDA we execute will be reviewed based on the
unique

terms and conditions as

sociated with such arrangement to determine
using applicable accounting guidance the

timing
of

recognition
whether the arrangement is revenue producing or represents

reimbursement of research and development costs and the appropriate amounts to be

Marketable Securities

Marketable securities include at December 31 in thousands

recognized If an arrangement is determined to be revenue producing we apply applicable

accounting standards to ensure
proper timing

and amounts of revenue recognition
If an

arrangement is determined to
represent

reimbursement of research and development

costs we apply accounting
standards for reimbursements to ensure

proper timing

amounts and classification as an offset to research and development expenses

Reclassificalions of Financial Statements

In the
presentation

of the Statements of Cash Flows far the
years

ended December 31

2010 and 2009 respectively we have regrouped the following categories within Operating

Activities under the caption Other
provision

for reversal of bad debt provision
for in

ventory obsolescence income tax benefit deficiency from share-based payment arrange

ments loss from equity-method investments and
gain on sale Qf equity

investment For

the
years

ended December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively we have
regrouped

the fol

lowing categories
within

Financing
Activities under the

caption Other credit line borrowings

credit line repayments and payments of loans

2011

Gross Estimated

Unrealized Fair

Cost Gain Loss Value

Securities in unrealized
gain position

Common stock $22376 $12241 $34617

Government debt
obligations 22612 69 22681

Government-sponsored debt
obligations 7000 7006

U.S
Treasury obligations

Subtotal 51988 12316 64304

Securities in unrealized loss position

Government debt obligations 4437 4435

Government-sponsored debt obligations

Auction-rate
security 4720 1391 3329

Subtotal 9157 1393 7764

Securities at amortized cost

Time deposits 6893 6893

Subtotal 6893 6893

Total marketable securities $68038 $10923 $78961

State and
municipal government

debt
obligations

2010

Gross

Unrealized Fair

Cost Gain Loss Value

251 1545 1796

16661 87 16748

15004 11 15015

8045 8047

39961 1645 41606

26138 63 26075

8000 1991

4695 1794 2901

38833 1866 36967

5351 5351

5351 5351

$84145 221 S83924

U.S Treasury obligations were included as part of u.s Government-sponsored secorities in the companys Annual Report for the
year

ended December 312010

The cost basis of the Massachosetts Educational Financing Aothorily auction-rate security is eqoal to the
par

valoe of $5000000 less unaccreted non-cash credit losses of $280000 and $305000 at December 31 2011

and December 31 2010 respectively
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The amortized cost and estimated fair value of available-for-sale securities by contractual
maturity as of December 31 2011 expected maturities may

differ from contractual

maturities because the issuers of the securities may exercise the right to
prepay obligations

without prepayment penalties in thousands

Estimated

Cost Fair Value

Due in one year or less $29276 $29306

Due beiween one and three
years 11666 11709

Auction-rate
security due in 2038 4720 3329

45662 44344

Common stock 22376 34617

$68038 $78961

As of December31 2011 out of the 42 marketable securities currently
held were in an unrealized loss position This table shows the Companys marketable securities that were

in an unrealized loss
position at December 31 2011 and also shows the duration of time the security had been in an unrealized loss position in thousands

___________________________
Total

Fair Fair Unrealized

Value Value Losses

$4435

Foreign Currency Exchange Contracts

At December 31 2011 we held
foreign currency exchange contracts that are eco

nomic hedges with notional amounts totaling $22.0 million of which $10.4 million

2010 will be settled in Euros $1.9 million will be settled in Taiwan Dollars $0.6 million

$16 499
will be settled in Japanese Yen and $9.1 million will be settled in Korean Won

2133
Changes in the fair market value gain or loss on these contracts were not significant

___________________________________________________
46575

as of December 31 2011

65207
At December 31 2010 we held

foreign currency exchange contracts that were

___________________________________________________
2315

economic hedges with notional amounts totaling $32.1 million
of which $12.6 mil

___________________________________________________________ ________/
lion were settled in Earns $1.8 million were settled in Taiwan Dollars $1.9 million

$62832
were settled in Japanese Yen and $16.4 million were settled in Korean Won Changes

in the fair market value gain or loss on these contracts were not significant as of

December 31 2010

Fair Value Measurements

At December 31 2011 and 2010 we have included the fair value of our auction-

rate security
under the

caption
Marketable

securities non-current in the Consolidated

Balance Sheets

Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or Greater

Unrealized

tosses

Fair

Value

Unrealized

Losses

Government debt
obligations $4435

Auction-rate
security 3329 1391 3329 1391

Total 54435 $3329 51391 $7164 51393

See Note for further discussion

Inventories

Inventories include at December 31 in thousands

2011

Raw materials $20508

Work-in-process 1681

Finished goods 53986

76175

Excess and obsolescence reserve 2553

Inventories net $73622

As of December 31 2011 the Company had commitments for
inventory purchases

of $15.6 million

As of December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively we had $5.0 million and $3.8

million of finished goods inventory residing at non-ATMI consignment locations
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Assets/Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on Recurring Basis

This table summarizes the Companys assets liabilities
measured at fair value on recurring

basis at December 31 2011 in thousands

Fair Value Measured Using

Cash and cash equivalents

Available-for-sale marketable securities

Common stock

Time
deposits

Government debt
obligations

Government-sponsored debt obligations

Auction-rate security

Total

$34523

34617

6893

27116

7006

3329

Quoted Prices

in Active

Markets for Identical

Assets Level

S34523

34617

6893

Foreign currency exchange contract asset
187 187

Foreign currency exchange contract liability 212 212

Significant

Unobservable

Inputs Level

Includes redassificution of uur Intermolecular investment from non-marketable equity securities
which previously was classified nsa Level nun-recurring measurement

The Company recorded losses of S2.0 million and S0.8 million for the years
ended December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively

and
gain

of $0.2 million for the
year

ended

2009 under the caption
Other income expense net in the Consolidated Statements of Operations related to changes in the fair value of its financial instruments for forward

foreign currency exchange contracts accounted for as fair value hedges

During 2011 our valuation methodologies were consistent with
previous years and there were no transfers into or out of Level based on changes in observable

inputs

There were no transfers between Level and Level
during

2011 We reclassified our investment in Intermolecular from non-recurring fair value measurement to recurring
fair

value measurement usa result of their initial public offering
in November 2011

This table presents
reconciliation for all assets and liabilities measured at fair value on recurring basis using significant

unobservable
inputs Level for the

year
ended

December 31 2011 in thousands

Fair Value Measurements Using

Significant
Unobservable

Inputs Level

Available-For-

Sale Marketable

Securities

Balance at December 31 2010 $2901

Total gains losses realized and unrealized

Included in net income

Included in accumulated other comprehensive income 428 428

Purchases issuances and settlements net

Transfers into out of Level

Balance at December 31 2011 $3329 $3329

Significant
Other

Observable

Inputs Level

27116

7006

3329

Total

$2901

See Note for further discussion

22 ATMI Inc



Assets/liabilities Measured at Fair Value on Nonrecurring Basis

All assets and liabilities measured at fair value on nonrecurring basis are categorized

as Level
requiring significant management Iudgment due to the absence of quoted

market
prices or observable

inputs
for assets of similar nature The individual amounts

of assets and liabilities measured on non-recurring
basis are discussed below

On November 22010 ATMIs Belgian subsidiary acquired the
remaining

60
percent

of the outstanding shares of Artelis S.A The total
accounting purchase consideration of

$21.8 million included cash payment of $4.0 million the fair value of contingent pay

ments tied to future revenue performance of $8.4 million the
carrying

value of $5.9

million related to our original 40
percent non-controlling ownership interest and assumed

debt of $3.5 million The
contingent payments tied to future revenue performance for

the
years

2012 through 2014 have
range

of possible outcomes from SO to $23.3

million The
gain

has been recorded in our Statements of Operations under the caption

Other income expense net The acquisition was recorded under the purchase method

of
accounting and accordingly Artelis results of operations are included in the Companys

financial statements from the date of
acquisition

Consistent with
prior quarters

the fair value of the Artelis
contingent

consideration li

ability was estimated
using

discounted cash flow methodology Since the value is
pri

marily
based on revenues achieved in the measurement period our estimate this

quarter

included simulation of revenues undertaken in Monte Carlo simulation framework

We risk adjusted the revenue estimates in the simulation in accordance with their

market-related risks The amounts calculated based on the simulated revenues were then

discounted to present value at an
average

rate of 5.3 percent using term-appropriate

risk-free rate plus spread commensurate to the Companys credit
rating as of the

valuafion date

The fair value of the contingent payments as of December 312011 was $7.2 million

compared to $8.4 million as of December 312010 The decline was driven by decline

in our assessment of future sales due to the current economic uncertainty in conjunction

with reduction in value due to translation of Euro-denominated balances into U.S

dollars through 2011 We will continue to use term-appropriate
risk-free

rate plus

spread commensurate to our credit rating going forward

During 2009 long-lived assets held and used with carrying amount of $8.4 million

were written down to their estimated fair values of $1.1 million resulting in an impairment

charge of $7.3 million The fair value measurements were calculated using unobservable

inputs primarily using
discounted cash flow analyses and reliance on market knowledge

of internal experts classified as Level
requiring significant management judgment due

to the absence of
quoted

market
prices or observable

inputs
for assets of similar nature

$3.1 million of the impairment charge
is included in cost of revenues and is primarily re

lated to the
planned idling

of
manufacturing capacity

of our gas products
$1.6 million of

the impairment charge is included in research and development expense and is related

primarily to idled equipment used in our research and development efforts $2.6 million

of the impairment charge is included in selling general
and administrative expense and

is primarily related to redundant enterprise management software

Due to their nature the carrying value of cash receivables and payables approximates

fair value

Property Plant and EquipmeNt Net

Property plant
and equipment net consists of in thousands

December 31 2011

Land

Buildings

Machinery and equipment

Software

Cylinders
and canisters

Furniture and fixtures

leasehold improvements

Construction in
progress

Accumulated
depreciation

and amortization

Depreciation and amortization expense
for

property plant
and equipment for the

years
ended December 31 20112010 and 2009 was $23.3 million $22.8 million

and $22.3 million respectively

Fully depreciated assets which were no longer in use of
approximately $12.7 million

primarily software and machinery and equipment and $2.3 million were written off in

the
years

ended December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively

We recognized impairment losses from
property plant and equipment of $0.6 million

$0.5 million and $7.3 million in the
years

ended December 31 2011 2010 and

2009 respectively Refer to Note for additional information

As of December 31 2011 the Company had commitments for capital expenditures

of $1.0 million

This table shows amounts recorded in the Consolidated Statements of Operations

related to depreciation expense
for

property plant and equipment in thousands

Year Ended December 31

Cost of revenues

Research and development

Selling general and administrative

Total
depreciation

and amortization

2011 2010 2009

$10480 $10531 $10633

7913 5219 4381

4928 7006 7314

$23321 $22756 $22328

Goodwill and Other Intangibles

In conjunction with the SDS Direct transaction we recognized intangible
assets of

$11.8 million for the reacquired rights $8.8 million
and

non-competition agreement

$3.0 million net of liabilities assumed The useful lives of the
reacquired rights

and

the
non-competition agreement are 10

years
and years respectively

The license for our distribution rights to Enthones
copper

ECD
products including

its

Via Form products is subject to automatic renewal upon
satisfaction of certain conditions

in 2013 which we expect
to meet

2010

1104

26129

139294

24955

49844

3042

24841

6486

275695

159420

$116275

1123

25739

138664

28252

43535

2751

26488

2105

268657

149604

$119053
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Changes in carrying amounts of goodwill and other intangibles for the years ended December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively were in thousands

Gross amount as of December 31 2010

Accumulated amortization

Balance at December 31 2010

Gross amount as of December 31 2011

Accumulated amortization

Balance at December 312011

This table shows amounts recorded in the Consolidated Statements of
Operations

related to amortization
expense

for intangibles in thousands

Year Ended December 31 2011 2010 2009

Cost of revenues 334 313 296

Selling general and administrative 3507 3649 4175

Total amortization $3841 $3962 $44/1

The
approximate amortization expense expected

to be recognized related to intangible

assets is in thousands

Year Amount

2012 4716

2013 4716

2014 4716

2015 4201

2016 4201

Thereafter 14021

Total $36571

In 2010 the Artelis
acquisition was recorded under the purchase method of accounting

and accordingly the Artelis results of
operations are included in the Companys financial

statements from the date of acquisition

Purchase
price net of cash acquired $21824

The excess of the
purchase price over the estimated fair value of identifiable net assets

acquired has been recorded as goodwill The identified
intangible assets identified were

patents
of $9.3 million and trademark of $0.7 million Patents are being

amortized

over 15 years while the trademark has been assigned an indefinite life Goodwill acquired

is not deductible for income tax purposes

Other Non-Current Assets

In 2007 we entered into purchase agreement with Intermolecular Inc Intermol

ecular As
part

of the initial agreement we purchased
HPD

capabilities
from Intermol

ecular which expanded upon an existing
alliance agreement We have since purchased

additional HPD capabilities including tool sets as well as services related to the use of

these tools including
the use of dedicated research personnel In December 2007 we

mode $10.0 million
royalty prepayment to Intermolecular which is being applied to

guaranteed royalties
associated with

products developed using
the HPD

capabilities

Goodwill

Balance at December 31 2009 $33394

Acquisitions 3566

Amortization
expense

Other including foreign currency
translation 21

Balance at December 31 2010 $46981

Acquisitions

Amortization
expense

Other including foreign currency
translation 435

Balance at December 312011 $46546

Goodwill and other intangibles balances at December 31 2011 and 2010 were in thousands

Patents and Total Other

Trademarks Other Intangibles

$21760 1442 $23202

10028 10028

3502 460 3962

360 40 320

$27926 1022 $28948

11802 11802

3522 319 3841

338 338

$24066 $12505 $36571

Patents and Total Other

Trademarks Other
Intangibles

49869 $1396 51265

21943 314 2231/

27926 $1022 28948

49404 $13195 62599

25338 690 26028

24066 $12505 3657

Goodwill

$46981

$46981

$46546

$46546

The
purchase

consideration was allocated as summarized here in thousands

Identified intangible assets $10028

Net liabilities acquired 1770

Goodwill 13566
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In November 2011 Intermolecular
completed an initial public offering and we converted

our preferred shares into common shares and exercised warrant to purchase additional

common shares which caused us to reclassify our investment from Other non-current assets

to Marketable securities as the securifies are now publicly traded At December 31 2011

we own common shares with market value of $33.1 million

In 2011 we expensed $5.0 million of
prepoid royalties and we

expect
to expense

S2.5 million in 2012 The 2012 amount is included in the Consolidated Balance Sheets

under the
caption

Other current assets

In the fourth
quarter

of 2011 we extended the contract term of on existing commitment

with Intermolecular to purchase RD technology and
processes

The extension maintains

our current RD infrastructure and
expense structures over the next three

years The cash

payment commitments are $11.5 million S5.0 million $1.3 million and $1.3 million

in fiscal
years 2011 2012 2013 and 2014 respectively

In 2011 there was $1.3

million increase in commitments for that yeoç due to the contract extension The contract

extension did not include any full
time-equivalent resource commitments beyond 2012

Leases

The Company leases office and
manufacturing faciliffes and certain manufacturing equip

ment under several
operating

leases
expiring

between 2012 and 2034 Rental
expense

was $3.7 million $3.4 million and $4.3 million for the
years

ended December 31 2011

2010 and 2009 respectively

This is schedule of future minimum lease payments for
operating

leases as of

December 31 2011 in thousands

Operating

Leases

2012
3579

2013
2761

2014
1233

2015
1017

2016 929

Thereafter 2787

Total minimum lease payments $12306

We lease two facilMes in Danbury CF One facility houses our research and development

activities and certain of our microelectronics
manufacturing capabilifles and contains ap

proximately 73000 square
feet of

space In December 2010 we exercised renewal opon

for the
period January

2012 to December 2016 For the period January
2011 to

December 31 2011 the monthly base rent is $42094 For the period January 12012 to

December 31 2016 the monthly base rent is $47500 There is one addiflonal
five-year

renewal period available to ATMI under this lease We have agreed to certain restoration

obligations associated with this
facility which we are

accounting
for as an asset retirement

obligation ARO associated with the leasehold improvements made to this
facility

The

discounted fair value of the ARO at December 31 2011 is $2.7 million

The other facility in Danbury CF is our headquarters and contains approximately

31000 square
feet of space In October 2010 we exercised renewal

option
for the

period January 2012 to December 31 2016 For the period January 2011 to De

cember 31 2016 the monthly base rent is $17606 There is one additional
five-year

renewal
period available to ATMI under this lease

We lease
facility in Bloomington MN where we manufacture high-purity materials

packaging
and

dispensing systems within our microelectronics and life sciences product

lines This
facility contains approximately 68000 square

feet of space We entered into

an amendment of this lease on September 23 2008 which extended the lease term to

August 31 2013 Far the period January 12011 to August 31 2013 the monthly base

rent is $26706 There are two successive three-year renewal periods available to ATMI

under this lease We have agreed to certain restoration obligations associated with this

facility
which we are accounting for as an ARO associated with the leasehold

improvements

made to this facility The discounted fair value of the ARO as of December 31 2011 is

$0.3 million

Changes in the
carrying amounts of the Companys AROs at December 31 2011 are

in thousands

Balance as of December 31 2010

liabilities incurred

Liabilities settled

Accretion expense 63

Balance as of December31 2011 $3642

The ARO
liability is included in the Consolidated Balance Sheets under the

caption

Other non-current liabilities

10 Income Taxes

Pretax income loss from continuing operations was taxed in these
lurisdictions

in thousands

Year Ended December 31

Domestic

Foreign

Total
pretax income loss

2011 2010 2009

$54437 $32644 S2O784

15303 17983 7128

$39134 $50627 S13656

Significant components of the provision benefit for income taxes for the
following

years
ended are in thousands

Current

Federal

State

Foreign

Total current

Deferred

Federal

State

Foreign

Total deferred

2011 2010 2009

7326 4144 $7317

320 74 79

2682 2316 2154

10328 6534 5084

27049 4174 117

2102 739 392

292 326 1403

29443 4587 1912

$19115 $11121 $6996

$3506

73

December 31
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The reconciliation of income tax expense benefit from
operations computed at the

U.S federd statutory tax rote to the Companys tax
expense benefit is in thousands

For the Year Ended December31 2011 2010 2009

U.S statutory rate $13698 Si 7719 S4779

Stateincometaxes 1158 529 196

Foreign income taxes 5948 8322 2375

Taxexemptincome 115 112 213

Change in valuation allowance

of deferred tax assets 2445 1854 133

Adjustmenttotaxliabilities 393 213 457

Research and development credits 681 846 284

Other net 433 512 261

$19115 511121 S6996

21835 ATMI hcis not provided for U.S federal income and
foreign withholding taxes on ap

651 proximately $92.4 million of undistributed earnings
from non-U.S

operations
as of

237 December 31 2011 because such earnings are intended to be reinvested indefinitely

22 723
outside of the United States These

earnings
could become

sublect to additional tax if

they are remitted as dividends loaned to ATMI or upon sale of
subsidiary

stock It is

not practicable to estimate the amount or timing
of the additional tax if any that

eventually might be paid on the foreign earnings

South Korea has granted the Company an income tax
exemption

that expires in 2014

including
the lost two

years
at 50 percent

of the exemption The exemption applies only

to income related to one of the Companys product
lines The effect of the tax exemption

was to reduce income tax expense by $2.8 million $2.1 million and Si .3 million for

the years
ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively

Expiration At December 31 2011 ATMI had S3.7 million of
unrecognized

tax benefits which

if recognized
would

favorably
affect the effective income tax rate in future periods 50.7

2015 million of this amount is included in deferred taxes and the balance of $3.0 million is

included in the caption Other non-current liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheets

together
with $0.4 million of accrued interest net on tax reserves and SO accrued for

2017-2031
penalties

At December 31 2010 the amount of
unrecognized

tax benefits which if

recognized
would have favorably affected the effective income tax rate in future periods

was S5.6 million $0.7 million of accrued interest net on tax reserves
and $0 accrued

None

for penalties

The reconciliation of the unrecognized tax benefits exclusive
of

interest at the

beginning of 2010 through the end of 2011 is in thousands

Ending
BalanceDecember 31 2009

Increases from
prior period positions

Decreases from
prior period positions

Increases from current period positions

Decreases related to settlements with taxing authorities

Decreases from
lapse

of statute of limitations

Ending BalanceDecember 31 2010

Reclasses out of non-income tax-based positions

Increases from
prior period positions

Decreases from
prior period positions

Increases from current period positions

Decreases related to settlements with
taxing

authorities

Decreases from lapse of statute of limitations

5591

1350

59

259

469

482

372

Ending BalanceDecember 312011 3656

Significant components of the Companys deferred tax assets and liabilities are

in thousands

December 31 2011 2010

Deferred tax assets

Accrued liabilities

Inventory reserves

Net
operating

loss and tax credit carryforwards

Equity-based compensafion

Reacquired rights on contract termination

Other net

Valuation allowance

$3647

1699

10758

7890

560

24554

31 78

21376

$5516

1797

12463

8338

30691

525

59330

5305

54025

23978

4333

2328

30639

$23386

Deferred tax liabilities

Depreciation
and amortization

Unrealized gain on marketable securities

Other net

Net deferred tax assets liabilities

The valuation allowance relates to the realizability
of certain U.S state and foreign

net operating losses
and certain foreign tax credits

As of December 31 2011 the Company hod these deferred tax assets related to net

operang loss NOl.s and tax credit carryforwards in thousands

Federal

Capital
loss 938

938

State

525NOls

38Credits

143Credits

706

Foreign

9771NOLs

40NOLs

1008Credits

$10819

$12463Total

None

2016

2012-2013

$6182

241

586

1293

1130

409

26 ATMI Inc



In the second quarter of 2011 based an facts and circumstances and recent interpre

tation of fax law we determined that $1.4 million of
unrecognized tax benefits will not

impact income taxes as result the classification of this amount was changed from un

recognized tax benefits to loss
contingency within the same caption Other non-current

liabilities It is reasonably possible that in the next 12 months because of changes in

facts and
circumstances the

unrecognized tax benefits for tax positions taken related to

previously
filed tax returns may decrease The

range
of

possible decrease is $0 million to

S0.2 million In January 2012 the Internal Revenue Service
completed U.S tax audit

of tax
years 2008 and 2009 although the refund claim for tax

year
2009 is still

subject

to review by the Joint Committee on Taxation

11 Defined Contribution Plan

The Company maintains defined contribution plan 401k Plan covering
substan

tially all of its U.S employees that is subject to the
provisions of the Employee Retirement

Incame
Security Act of 1914 The Companys matching contributions are discretionary

by plan year and were approximately $1.8 million $1.5 million and $1.1 million for

the
years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively On June 52009

the Company discontinued the matching of
contributions but the Company match was

reinstated on October 92009 The Plan
provides for discretionary matching contributions

of 100 percent of the first
percent of each

participants eligible compensation plus SO

percent on the next percent of each
participants eligible compensation up to

statutory

limitations There is no matching contribution above
percent of each

participants

eligible compensation

12 Stockholders
Equity

This table shows the effect of pretax compensation cost
arising

from
equity-based payment

arrangements recognized in the Consolidated Statements of
Operations in thousands

December31 2011 2010 2009

Cost of
revenues $496 $351 $315

Research and development 900 866 523

Selling general and administrative 6143 6410 4902

Total
equity-based compensation expense $7539 $1693 $5740

No
equity-based compensation cost was capitalized

Summary of Plans

We currently have three
equity-based compensation plans which

provide for the grant

ing of up to 1000000 shares of common stoclc pursuant to nonqualified stock
options

incentive stock
options lSOs stock

appreciation rights and restricted stock awards to

employees directors and consultants of the Company Stock
options typically vest over

periods ranging
from one to four years with maximum term of ten years Restricted

stock awards
typically vest over periods ranging from three to five years Shares issued

as result of stock
option exercises are primarily settled by the issuance of new shares

This table shows the number af shares approved by shareholders for each plan and

the number of shares that remain available for equity awards at December 31 2011

in thousands

Number Number

of of

Shares Shares

________________________________
Approved Available

3000 14

3000 2895

1000 245

/000 3214

Exercise prices for ISOs and non-qnalified stock
opflons granted under this plan may not be less than 100

percent nf the fair market name for the
companys cnmmnn stock nn the date nf grant

Employees may pnrchase shares at 95
percent of the closing price on the day previnns to the lost

day
of

each six-month
offering period This

plan is nut considered to be
compensatory

Fair Value

The Company uses the Black-Scholes-Merton
options-pricing model to determine the

fair value of stock
options under ASC 718 Compensation Stock Compensafian Man

agement is required to make certain
assumptions

with
respect to selected model

inputs

including anticipated changes in the
underlying stock

price i.e expected volatility and

option exercise activity i.e expected term For awards
granted subsequent to January

2006 expected volatility is bused on the historical
volatility of ATMI common stock for

period shorter than the expected term of the
options

We have excluded the historical

volatility prior to the
public announcement regarding the sale of our non-care businesses

in 2004 because those businesses that were said
represented significant portion of

ATMIs consolidated business and were subject to considerable
cyclicality associated with

the semiconductor equipment industry which drove increased
volatility in ATMIs stock

price
The

expected term of
options granted is derived

using historical exercise patterns

which
represent the

period
of time that

options granted are
expected to be

outstanding

The risk-free rate is based on the U.S
Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant

for
period commensurate with the estimated

expected term In accordance with ASC 718

in the determination of
equity-based compensation cast the Company estimates the total

number of instruments that will be forfeited as result of failure to provide the
requisite

service to earn the award

The
weighted-average fair value of

options granted during
the

years ended December 31

2011 2010 and 2009 was $9.66 $8.62 and $6.44 respectively based an the Black

Scholes-Merton
options-pricing

model These
weighted-average assumptions were used for

grants
in the

periods indicated

Stock
option grants

Risk-free interest rate

Expected term in
years

Expected volatility

Dividend yield

3.15% 3.00% 2.15%

7.85 7.40 7.20

43.3% 44.0% 41.4%

0% 0% 0%

The Company uses historical data to estimate forfeitures of awards from employee

terminations in order to estimate compensation cast far awards expected to vest In ad

dition we separate employees into
groups

that have similar characteristics for
purposes

of making forfeiture estimates

Stock Plan

2003 Stock Plan

2010 Stock Plan

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

Totals

2011 2010 2009
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Stock Option and Restricted Stock Activily

This table shows the option activity
under the plans as of December 31 2011 and

changes duing the
year

then ended options are expressed in thousands averages
are

calculated on weighted basis life in years intrinsic value expressed
in thousands

Number Average Average Aggregate

of Exercise Remaining Intrinsic

Options
Price life Value

Outstanding
at

December 31 2010

Exercisable at

December 31 2011

1931 S21.87

211 $18.48

$17.65

$23.84

The
aggregate

intrinsic value represents
the difference between the Companys closing

stock
price

of $20.03 as of December31 2011 and the exercise price
of the dilutive op

tions at that date multiplied by the number of dilutive options outstanding at that date

The total intrinsic value of stock options
exercised during the years

ended December 31

2011 2010 and 2009 was $0.1 million $0.2 million and $0 million respectively

The total fair value of options
which vested during

the
years

ended December 31 2011

2010 and 2009 was $1.7 million 184000 shares $1.7 million 189000 shares

and $2.1 million 167000 shares respectively

An income tax deficiency was recognized
in additional paid-in capital

from eqully

based compensation totaling SO $0.1 million and $0.6 million for the years
ended De

cember 31 20112010 and 2009 respectively
An income tax deficiency was recognized

in income tax expense
from equity-based compensation totaling $0.9 million and $0.4

million for the years
ended December 31 2011 and December 31 2010 respectively

There was no income tax deficiency in 2009

This table shows restricted stock activity as of December 31 2011 and changes during

the year
then ended shares are expressed

in thousands averages
are calculated on

weighted basis

Average

Number Grant

of Date Fair

Shares Value

Nonvested at December 31 2010 1184 $19.28

Granted
470 $18.34

Vested
$26.81

$17.86

$17.97

200

Forfeited
191

Nonvested at December31 20111263

The total fair value of restricted stock which vested during
the

years
ended December 31

2011 2010 and 2009 was $5.3 million $5.0 million and $3.8 million respectively

As of December 31 2011 $2.4 million of unrecognized compensation cost related

to non-vested stock options
is expected to be recognized over weighted-average period

of approximately
1.6 years As of December 31 2011 $9.6 million of unrecognized

compensation
cost related to restricted stock is expected

to be recognized over weighted-

average period
of approximately

2.1 years

Earnings Per Share

This table shows the computation
of basic and diluted earnings per

share in thousands

except per
share data

Earnings loss per
sharebasic

Earnings loss per
sharediluted

This table shows the potential common shares excluded from the calculation of

weighted-average
shares outstanding

because their effect was considered to be antidilutive

in thousands

2011 2010 2009

Antidilutive shares 2144 1450 2340

The Company has never declared or paid cash dividends on its capital
stock

In August 2010 the Companys Board of Directors approved
share repurchase program

for up to $50.0 million of ATMI common stock The program which has no expiration

date does not require
the Company to purchase any specific

number or amount of shares

and may be suspended or reinstated at any
time at the Companys discretion and without

notice Under the terms of the share repurchase program repurchases
can be made from

time to time in open
market transactions at prevailing

market prices or in privately nego

tiated transactions Management determined the
timing

and amount of purchases
under

the Repurchase Programs
based upon market conditions or other factors

Under all the repurchase programs approved by the Companys Board of Directors

the Company purchased
total of 8001000 shares of its common stock at an average

price
of $28.37 per

share There were no shares repurchased
under these programs

in 2011

Granted

Exercised 59

Forfeited 164

Outstanding at

December31 2011 1919

2011 2010 2009

Numerator

Net income loss $20019 $39506 56660

Denominator

$21.47 4.5 $2940
Denominator for basic

earnings loss per
share

1451 $22.66 3.2 $1574
weighted-average shares 31703 31413 31398

_________________
Dilutive effect of employee

stock options

36

Dilutive effect of restricted stock
446

atorfordiluted earnings

loss per
common share

weighted-average shares 31703

$0.63

$0.63

31895

$1.26

$1.24

31398

50.21

$0.21
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13 Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

The components of accumulated other comprehensive income ore in thousands

Determined based on the specific identification method

14 Commitments Contingencies and Other

ATMI is from time to time involved in legal actions governmental audits and pro

ceedings relating to various matters incidental to its business including contract disputes

intellectual properly disputes product liability claims employment matters export
and

trade matters and environmental claims While the outcome of such matters cannot be

predicted with certainty in the opinion of management after reviewing such matters

and consulting with ATMIs counsel and considering any applicable insurance or indem

nifications any liability which may ultimately be incurred is not expected to materially

affect ATMIs consolidated financial position cash flows or results of operations

In the fourth
quarter

of 2011 we extended the contract term of an existing commitment

with Intermolecular to purchase RD technology and
processes

The extension maintains

our current RD infrastructure and
expense structures over the next three years The cash

payment commitments are Si 1.5 million $5.0 million Si .3 million and $1.3 million

in fiscal
years 2011 2012 2013 and 2014 respectively

In 2011 there was $1.3

million increase in commitments for that year due to the contract extension The contract

extension did not include any full time-equivalent resource commitments beyond 2012

Unrealized

Gain ross on

Available-for-Sale

Securities

599

1287

As part
of the Artelis

acquisition we recognized liability for the fair value of contingent

payments
tied to future revenue performance

for the fiscal
years

2012 through 2014

of S8.4 million as of the acquisition
date As of December 31 2011 the fair value of

the contingent consideration was $7.2 million The
contingent payment tied to future

revenue performance has
range

of
possible outcomes from SO to $23.3 million

ATMI currently has self-insurance limits for U.S employee medical claims The medical

plan for U.S employees has stop-loss
of S0.2 million

per
individual occurrence and

an annual
aggregate stop-loss of 54.9 million

Other

Approximately percent
of the Companys employees are covered

by
collective bar

gaining agreements that will
expire

in June2013 All of the employees covered by
these

agreements are based in Belgium The net assets of the Companys Belgian subsidiary

represent approximately percent
of the Companys consolidated net assets

Currency

Translation

Adjustments

865

Total

266

1287

Balance at December 31 2008

Cumulative effect of
adoption

of new accounting
standard

Reclassification
adjustment

related to marketable securities in unrealized
gain position

at prior period end net of $32 tax benefit 55 55

Change in fair value of available-for-sale securitiesnet of deferred income tax of $1139 1940 1940

Cumulative translation
adjustment 2540 2540

Balance at December 31 2009 3405 3404

Reclassification adjustment
related to marketable securities in unrealized

gain position

at prior period end net of $282 tax provision 481 481

Change in fair value of available-for-sale securities net of deferred income tax of $201 343 343

Cumulative translation adjustment
762 762

Balance at December 31 2010 $4167 39 4028

Reclassification adjustment related to marketable securities in net unrealized
gain position

at
prior period end net of SO tax

provision

Change in fair value of available-for-sale securities net of deferred income tax of $4351 7119 7119

Cumulative translation
adjustment 3097 3097

Balance at December 312011 1070 6979 8049
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15 Segments

ATMI is organized along functional lines of responsibility whereby each member of

the Companys executive team has
global responsibility

for each
respective

functional

area such as supply
chain

operations sales marketing finance and research and de

velopment The executive team is the chief
operating

decision maker of ATMI Discrete

financial information is only prepared at the
product-line

level for revenues and certain

direct costs Functional results are reviewed at the consolidated level ATMIs operations

comprise
one operating segment Our organizational structure has been consistent from

2009 to 2011

ATMI derives
virtually

all its revenues from providing materials and packaging products

and related
integrated process solutions to microelectronics and life sciences

manufacturers ATMIs
products are consumed or used in the front-end

manufacturing

process They span many
different

technology applications cit various stages of maturity

and in many cases are interrelated in their
application to customers

process

Revenues from external customers by product type were as follows in thousands

For the Year Ended December 31 2011 2010 2009

Microelectronics $351823 $336519 $230707

Life sciences 38264 30737 23997

Total $390087 $367256 $254704

16 Geographic Data

The Companys geographic data for the
years

ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 are in thousands

December 31 2011

Revenues

Long-lived
assets

December 31 2010

Revenues

Long-lived assets

December 31 2009

Revenues

Long-lived assets

64824 $89415 $49539

159267 7581 8473

South Other

Korea Pacific Rim

Revenues are attributed to countries based on the location of the customer Long-lived assets are located in the respective geographic regions as shown above Other than Taiwan

Japan Belgium and South Korea no one specific country
within the Pacific Rim Europe South America and other regions accounted for greater than 10 percent of consolidated

revenues and
long-lived assets in 2011 2010 and 2009

United States Taiwan Japan

$80288 $97324 $43416 $79332 $50010 $3269

157536 6037 7872 6440 492 41376

Europe

Belgium and Other Total

$67743

6118

$50347 $55454

168678 8513

$56377

285

$36482

7354

$51555 $31347

3274 265

$2050

41013

$2759

24216

$36448 $390087

277 220030

$37308 $367256

326 223063

$26760 $254704

392 212692
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17 Quarterly Results of Operations Unaudited

Summarized quarterly results of operations data is as follows in thousands except per
share amounts

Quarter

2011 First Second Third Fourth

Revenues $1 00724a $104027 $95006 90330d

Gross profit 48091 49462 44051 42526e

Operating income loss 11658 15448b 11816 76636f

Net income loss 8007 11134 8041c $47201g

Basic income loss per common share

Earnings loss per common share $0.25 $0.35 $0.25 $1.49

Diluted income loss per
common share

Earnings loss per
common share $0.25 $0.34 $0.25 $1.49

2010

Revenues 85311 90996 $94960 95989

Gross profit 41689 43555 45661 45103

Operating income 11994 10644 10688 8612

Net income 8666h 7598 9477i 13765i

Basic income
per common share

Earnings per
common share $0.27 $0.24 $0.30 0.44

Diluted income
per common share

Earnings per common share $0.27 $0.24 $0.30 0.43

Includes $1.7 million from II settlements which
represents

the
payment

of royalties for
periods prior to 20

Includes $0.9 million gain on remeasurement of contingent consideration and $1 .2 million benefit related to slate tao credits

Includes $0.7 million of pretax foreign exchange losses

Revenues were negatively impacted by the effects of the SOS Direct
transaction which included inventory repurchases and excess inventory in the SDS channel partially offset by incremental revenues realized from the

transaction Includes $0.7 million from IP settlements which
represents

the
payment

of
royalties for periods prior tu 2011

The cost of revenues were favorably impacted by
the effects of the SOS Direct transaction representing cost reversals for inventery repurchasud and the effects of excess inventory in the SOS channel partially offset by transition

service costs and incremental costs on revenues realized from the transaction

Includes an $84.6 million contract termination charge related to the SOS Direct transaction transition-related distribution
eopenses

of $1.3 million $0.8 million gain on renleasurement of contingent consideration and

$1.2 million benefit related to state tao credits

Includes $31.0 million of tao benefit associated with the contract termination charge and $0.8 millien pretao impairment loss on an equity investment

Includes $0.5 million
gnin

from the sale of marketable
security and $0.5 million tao benefit including interest recognized to reverse previously established reserves for uncertain tao positions

Includes $2.5 million
pretao gain on sale of shares ef one of eur equity-method iooestees

Includes $5.9 million fair value remeasurement gain
related tu acquisition of Artelis $1.2 million tax benefit including interest recognized to reverse previously established reserves for uncertain tax positions $2.1

million tax beneht related to European dividend and $1.9 million
charge

related to changes in valuation allowances
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lstQuarter
$19.65 $15.13

2nd Quarter
22.05 14.21

3rd Quarter
16.07 12.13

4th Quarter
20.99 14.47

As of January 31 2012 there were approximately 153 holders of record of our common stock

We have never paid
cash dividends on our common stock and have no current plans

to do so There are no contractual restrictions in
place

that currently materially limit or are

likely
in the future to materially limit us from

paying
dividends on our common stock

but
applicable

state law may limit the payment of dividends Our
present policy is to retain

earnings if any to provide funds for the operation
and

expansion
of our business

The Transfer Agent and Registrar for ATMI is Continental Stock Transfer Trust Company

Stock Performance

This graph compares the cumulative total stockholder return on ATMIs common stock with the return on the Total Return Index for the NASDAQ Global Select Market NASDAQ U.S

Index and the NASDAQ Electronic Components Stock Index The measurement assumes $100 investment as of December 31 2006 with all dividends if any reinvested The data

presented are on an annual basis for the five
years

ended December 31 2011 The
performance

shown is not necessarily indicative of future performance

$120

$100
______________________

-ATMI
$80

ØNASDAQ U.S Index

$60

NASDAQ Electronic

$40 Components Stock Index

Russell 2000

$20

TOTAL RETURN CALCULATION

Dote

$0

Dec-06 Dec-07 Dec-08 Dec-09 Dec-10 Dec-Il

Relative Stock Performance

NASDAQ NASDAQ Electronic

U.S Index Components Stock Index Russell 2000 ATMI

12/29/06 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

12/31/07 108.47 112.12 97.27 105.63

12/31/08 66.35 60.44 63.10 50.54

12/31/09 95.38 94.57 80.02 60.99

12/31/10 113.19 98.61 100.27 65.31

12/31/11 113.81 90.17 94.51 65.61

PRICE RANGE OF COMMON STOCK

The common stock of ATMI has traded on the NASDAQ Global Select Market under the symbol ATMI since October 13 1997 and the common stock of our predecessor company

traded under that symbol from 1993 until October 12 1997 This table sets forth for the periods indicated the high
and low sales

price
for the common stock as reported on the

NASDAQ Global Select Market

Fiscal Year Ended December 312011

High Low

lstQuarter
$21.28 $17.01

2nd Quarter
20.65 17.25

3rd Quarter
21.32 15.32

4th Quarter
21.48 15.15

Fiscal Year Ended December 31 2010

High
low
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Managements Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and
maintaining adequate internal control over financial

reporting
Internal control over financial

reporting is process designed

to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting

and the
preparation

of financial statements for external
reporting purposes

in accordance with
accounting

principles generally accepted in the United States of America Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial
reporting may not

prevent or detect misstatements Our

management has assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial
reporting as of December 2011 In making its assessment management has used the criteria set

forth by the Commiffee of Sponsoring Organizations COSO of the Treadway Commission in Internal ControlIntegrated Framework Our management concluded that based on its

assessment our internal control over financial
reporting was effective as of December 31 2011 The Companys internal control over financial

reporting us of December 31 2011 has

been audited by Ernst Young LIP an independent registered public accounting firm as stated in their attestation
report on the Companys internal control over financial

reporting

which is included in this annual
report

There has been no change in our internal control over financial
reporting during

the
quarter

ended December 31 2011 that has
materially affected or is reasonably likely

to

materially affect our internal control over financial
reporting
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of ATMI Inc

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of ATMI Inc as of December 31 2011 and 2010 and the related consolidated statements of
operations

stockholders equity
and cash flows for each of the three

years
in the period ended December 31 2011 These financial statements are the responsibility of ATMI Inc.s management

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board United States Those standards

require
that we plan and perform

the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes examining on test basis evidence
supporting

the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An audit also includes
assessing

the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management as well as

evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material
respects

the consolidated financial position of ATMI Inc at December 31 2011 and 2010

and the consolidated results of its
operations

and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31 2011 in conformity with U.S generally accepted

accounting principles

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States ATMI Inc.s internal control over financial reporting as

of December 31 2011 based on criteria established in Internal ControlIntegrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission

and our report
dated February 17 2012 expressed an unqualified opinion

thereon

IOU4IfLLP

Stamford Connecticut

February 17 2012
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Report of Independent Registered Public AccountiNg Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of ATMI Inc

We have audited ATMI Inc.s internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31 2011 based on criteria established in Internal ControlIntegrated Framework issued

by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission the COSO criteria ATMI Inc.s management is responsible for
maintaining

effective internal control over

financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting

Our responsibility is to
express on opinion on ATMI Inc.s internal control over

financial
reporting

based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board United States Those standards

require
that we plan

and perform the

audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material

respects
Our audit included

obtaining an

understanding of internal control over financial
reporting assessing

the risk that material weakness
exists testing

and
evaluating

the
design

and
operating

effectiveness of internal

control based on the assessed rislc and
performing

such other
procedures as we considered

necessary in the circumstances We believe that our audit
provides

reasonable basis for

our opinion

companys internal control over financial
reporting is

process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of

financial statements for external
purposes

in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles companys internal control over financial
reporting

includes those policies and

procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company provide

reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary

to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that

receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company and provide reasonable assurance

regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the companys assets that could have material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial
reporting may not

prevent or detect misstatements Also projections
of any evaluation of effectiveness to future

periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate

In our opinion ATMI Inc maintained in all material
respects

effective internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31 2011 based on the COSO criteria

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board United States the consolidated balance sheets of ATMI Inc as of

December 31 2011 and 2010 and the related consolidated statements of
operations

stockholders
equity

and cash flows for each of the three
years in the

period
ended December 31

2011 and our report
dated

February 17 2012
expressed an unqualified opinion

thereon

Stamford Connecticut

February 17 2012
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